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TESCO STORES LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 27 FEBRUARY 2021

The Directors present their Strategic Report of Tesco Stores Limited (the "Company” ) for the 52 weeks ended 27
February 2021 (prior period: 53 weeks ended 29 February 2020 (*2020™)).

Business review and principal activity

The principal activity of the Company is the operation of retail stores and associated activities with 2,751 (2020:
2,734) stores throughout Engldnd, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland.

This year, the COVID-19 pandemic brought disruption and uncertainty to our business and to all our customers,
colleagues, suppliers and shareholders. In responding to these challenges, Tesco was guided by its values as a
business and stayed true to its purpose of serving shoppers a litte better every day.

In what has been one of the most challenging years the business has faced, it has shown incredible resilience and
agility. In the year, Company sales excluding fuel, increased over the 52-week comparable period, mainly driven
by a shift towards in-home consumption. There has been an offset in the overall retail sales by a decrease in fuel
sales; but the overall revenue has stayed fairly flat. While the costs of responding to the pandemic have been
significant, the Company has strengthened its relationships with customers and built a stronger business for
stakeholders.

During the year, the Company did not accept any of the available financial support from Government. It did not
use the furlough scheme and in fact, the Company employed around 50,000 temporary colleagues and created
20,000 new permanent roles in the business. The Company did not defgr VAT payments and once the Tesco PLC
Board had greater clarity on the impact of COVID-19 on the business, it made the decision to repay business rates
relief that the Government had granted to the retail and hospitality industries in March 2020.

Tesco PLC (the “Group”), of which the Company forms part, has made further progress over the last year by
achieving a 7.1% increase in year-on-year group sales over the 52-week comparable basis. The Group’s approach
has been based on the four priorities: to provide food for all; safety for everyone; support for colleagues; and
support for communities. Despite the challenges faced in the year, the business stays in a strong place.

Further detail is included on pages 3 to 5 of the Tesco PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021, which
do not form a part of this Report.

Results and dividends

The results for the 52 weeks ended 27 February 2021 show a profit before tax of £1,018m (2020: £1,151 m) and
profit after tax of £1,056m (2020: £1,041m).

The Company has net assets at the period end of £5,472m (2020: £5,334m). Turnover amounted to £42,451m
(2020 £42,951m) with operating profit in the period of £1,427m (2020: £1,605m). The total comprehensnve
income for the period of £320m (2020: £763m) includes an actuarial loss on the defined benefit pension scheme
net of tax of £700m (2020: £261m) which is set out in Note 25.

The Company has paid neither an interim dividend (2020: £nil) nor a final dividend (2020: £nil) in respect of the
52 weeks ended 27 February 2021.

The Company has not paid any preference dividends in the period (2020: £nil). Refer to Note 20 for further
disclosure.

Key performance indicators (KPIs)

The Company adopts the Group’s six simple business performance indicators, namely:

1)  Grow sales;

2)  Deliver profit;

3)  Improve operating cash flow;

4)  Customers recommend us and come back time and again;

5)  Colleagues recommend us as a great place to work and shop; and
6)  Build trusted partnerships.
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 27 FEBRUARY 2021
(continued)

Key performance indicators (KPIs) (continued)

The Group Chief Financial Officer (CFO), who is also a director of the Company, provides regular updates on
progress against the KPI measures to the Group Executive Committee and the Group Board; whose members
include the majority of the Company’s Directors. The development, performance and position of the operations
ofthe Group, which includes the Company, is discussed on'page 11 of the Tesco PLC Annual Report and Financial
Statements 2021, which does not form a part of this Report.

Future developments

The Company’s future developments forma part of the Group’s strategjc priorities, which are discussed on pages
4 to 30 of the Tesco PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021, which do not form a part of this Report.
The Company’s performance is expected to continue throughout the next financial period, and it is anticipated
that the current performance levels will be maintained.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The management of the business and the Company’s ability to deliver against its prioritiés afe subject to a number
of nisks.

The most significant risks facing thé UK business include customer proposition risk; risks associated with the
failure to achieve transformation objectives; liquidity risk; competition and ‘markets risk; risks relating to brand,
reputation and trust; technology risk; risks associated with data security and data privacy; political, regulatory and
compliance risk; health and safety risk; people risk; Brexit risk, COVID-19 risk, and responsible sourcing and
supply chain risk

The Group has an established risk management process which is reviewed on a regular basis and covers all
business units including the Company. This includes the maintenance of risk regjsters which details the risks, the
risk movement and the relevant key controls and mitigating factors. These are reviewed on a regular basis by the
UK Leadership management and the Executive Committee. Further discussion of the Group approach to principal
risks and uncertainties is provided on pages 31 to 37 of the Tesco PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements
2021, which do not a form part of this Report. Details on the principal financial risks faced by the Company are
explained below.

Business risk

The ongoing development of the UK-s trading relationship with the EU, subsequent to the end of the Brexit
transition period during the year, and a failure to prepare all eventualities could have an adverse effect on our
primary business, its financial results and operations. The Tesco PLC Board will continue to assess and monitor
the potential risks and impacts on the Company and its stakeholders as a whole, while taking mitigation measures
to address challenges as appropriate. ‘

The continuing global COVID-19 pandemic may have a significant and prolonged impact on global economic
conditions, disrupt the Company’s supply chain (including supplier base, specifically regarding business closure
and consolidation, labour shortage, raw material supply and cost inflation), increase employee absences and
adversely impact the operations. Failure to adapt to changes brought about by this and any future pandemics in
oarkets and the environment in which the Company operate may adversely affect the competitiveness and
financial results.

Climate change has the potential to change dramatically the world in which we live and operate, and tackling
climate change, by taking measures to limit its impact to manageable levels, has become a key priority for
governments, businesses and citizens around the world. Fven if manageable, the effect of climate change will be
quite profound, and these measures will themselves have a significant impact on economies and the choices people
make. Climate change has, therefore, moved from an emerging risk to a principal risk for the business.

2|Page



DocuSign Envelope I1D: 26D4E128-5736-4D5C-9B58-9A98E4E4885C

TESCO STORES LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 27 FEBRUARY 2021
(continued)

Financial risk management

The principal financial risks faced by the Company relate to the availability of funds to meet business needs,
fluctuations in interest and foreign exc hange rates and credlt risks relating to the risk of default by counterparties
to financial transactions. Financial risk management for the Group, of which the Company forms a part, is
discussed in Note 25 of the Tesco PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021, which does not form a part
of this Report )

The main risks associated with the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are set out below.
Ll’quidity risk
The Company finances its operations by a combination of retained profits, disposals of assets, bank borrowings, leases

and intra-Group borrowings. This includes access to an undrawn committed revolving credit facility and bilateral
facilities of £2.5bn which can be used to meet liquidity risks as they arise.

Interest rate risk

Our objective is to limit the impact to our Profit and Loss Account fromrising interest rates. Forward rate agreements,
interest rate swaps, caps and floors may be used to achieve the desired mix of fixed and floating rate debt.

Foreign exchange visk

Our principal objective is to reduce the effect of exchange rate volatility on the Profit and Loss Account Currency
exposures that could significantly impact the Profit and Loss Account are managed using forward foreign currency
contracts or purchased currency options, which are designated as cash flow hedges.

Credit risk

Our objective is to reduce the risk of loss arising from default by parties to financial transactions. The Company holds
positions with an approved list of investment grade rated counterparties and these counterparties, and their credit ratings
are routinely monitored.

Section 172(1) Statement

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires a director of a company to act in the way he or she considers, in good
faith, would most likely promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole. In doing this
section 172 requires a director to have regard, amongst other matters, to the:

o likely consequences of any decisions in the long-term;
o interests of the company’s employees;
¢ need to foster the company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;
o impact of the company’s operations on the community and environment;
o desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct, and
« need to act fairly as between members of the company.
In discharging our section 172 duties we have regard to the factors set out above. We also have regard to other factors

which we consider relevant to the decision being made. Those factors, for example, include the interests and views of.

our pension Trustees and beneficiaries of the Company’s pension schemes and our relationship with non-government
organisations. We acknowledge that every decision we make will not necessarily result in a positive outcome for all of
our stakeholders. By considering the Company’s purpose, vision and values together with its strategic priorities and
having a process in place for decision-making, we do, however, aim to make sure that our decisions are consistent and
predictable.

We delegate authority for day-to-day mmnagement of the Company to senior management in setting, approving and
overseeing execution of the business strategy and related policies We review matters relating to financial and
operational performmance; business strategy; key risks; stakeholder-related matters; health and safety; diversity and
inclusivity;, environmental matters; governance; compliance; legal and regulatory matters over the course of the
financial year. This is done through regular meetings and dialogue with senior management, the consideration of reports
which are sent in advance of each Board meeting and through presentations to the Board.
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 27 FEBRUARY 2021
(continued)

Section 172(1) Statement (continued)

The Company’s key stakeholders are its colleagues, customers, suppliers and the local communities in which it operates.
The views of and the impact of the Compariy’s activities on those stakeholders are an important consideration for the
directors when making relevant decisions. While there are cases where the Board itself judges that it should engage
directly with certain stakeholder groups or on certain issues, the size and sprcad of both our stakeholders and Tesco
Group means that generally our stakeholder engagement best takes place at an operational or group level We find that
as well as being a more efficient and effective approach, this also helps us achieve a greater positive impact on
environmental, social and other issues than by working alone as an individual company. For details on some of the
engagements that takes place with the Company’s stakeholders so as to encourage the directors to understand the issues
to which they must have regard please see page 52 of the Tesco PLC 2021 Annual Report

During the period we received infoimation to help us understand the interests and views of the Company’s key
stakeholders and other relevant factors when making decisions. This information was distributed in a range of different
formats including in reports and presentations on our financial and operational performance, non-financial KPIs, risk,
ESG mmtters and the outcomes of specific pieces of engagement (for example, the results of customer and supplier
surveys and focus groups). As a result of this we have had an overview of engagement with stakeholders and other
relevant factors which allows us to understand the nature of the stakeholders’ concerns and to comply with our section
172 duty to promote success of the company.

Examples of how we have had regard to the matters set out in section 172(1)(a) - (f) when discharging our section 172
duty and the effect of that on decisions taken by us are et out below.

Board activity Board Consideration

Financial and operational performance | When the pandemic started, the financial and business impact was tracked
and the Board shaped the Group’s response to establish four key
priorities: Food for all, Safety for everyone, Support for colleagues and
Support for communities. For more information on the Group’s response
to COVID-19 see page 30 of the 2021 Tesco PLC.

The Board regularly reviewed the financial and operational position of
the company to consider the strategic direction and long-term viability of
the Company and ensure that future liabilities could be met

The Board reviewed the three-year Long-Term Plan and progress against
the 2020/21 plan, together with wupdates on sales, profit and cash
genefation.

In addition, the Board reviewed and approved their statutory accounts for
the 2019/20 financial year.

Risk Management The Board reviewed the most significant risks facing the Company. From
the beginning of COVID-19 the Board closely monitored and assessed
the risks and financial impact of the pandemic.

The Board assessed the risks associated with Brexit. The uncertainty of
the requirements had an impact on all areas of the business. Key risks
identified related to the implementation of the new UK-EU Trade and
Cooperation Agreement and its effects on the business. The Board had
oversight of the risks and mitigations in place

4|Page
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 27 FEBRUARY 2021

(continued)

Section 172(1) Statement (continued)

Strategic reviews.

Detailed strategic reviews of specnﬁc parts of the business were conducted to
help improve the customer experience. These detailed reviews highlighted
stakeholder oppommmes, for example: 2020/21 strategic priorities including
investment in Urban Fulfilment Centres; growth opportunities; innovation
through product, online and in-store experiences and the way we interact with
customers; product strategy and supplier review; and better utilisation of
technology.

The Board reviewed the Company’s. Renewable Energy Strategy,
considering the impact that the pandemic may have.

These strategic updates help Dnectors_undexsumd stakeholder priorities,
shape the strategy and take the business forward.

Capital Expenditure and Financing
arrangements

Throughout the year, the Board has considered and approved a va:iety of
capital expenditure in line with business plans, from investment in electric
vehicle charging points to expenditure supporting our property strategy.

The Board approved entry into a new revolving credit facility with interest
linked to three environmental targets which align to the Group’s Little Helps
Plan principles.

In addition, the Board has reviewed intragroup loan arrangements, external
funding arrangements, and reviewed practices for paying suppliers.

The Board considered a range of factors including the long-term viability of
the Company, its éxpected cash flow and financing requirement, the ongoing
need for strategic investment in our business and the impact on each of the
Company’s stakeholder groups.

Commercial agreements

Throughout the year, the Board reviewed and approved entry into mmaterial
contracts taking into consideration the operational and financial benefits and
risks.

In reaching its final decision, the Board had regard to a number of factors
including the ‘business case and financial returns; security of supply;
improved pricing and quality of products; improved terms for suppliers; risk
management; any impacts on colleagues, suppliers, customers, commmnities
and the environment; and the long-term reputation of the Company.

Wider stakeholder engagement

As mentioned above, the Board received regular updates on the evolving
position in light of the pandemic to ensure delivery of the four key priorities.
Updates provided specific focus on the impact of each stakeholder group
including health and safety updates which included adjustments required
during the pandemic; technology improvements providing increased
capability to support vulnerable customers, onboard around 50,000
temporary colleagues, promote cashless payments and increased online
capacity.

In addition, four priorities were established in the lead up to Christmas
trading: Managing, capacity through peak trading, Safety in-store for
colleagues and customers, stock management and custorer communication.
Stakeholder reaction to the Company’s response has been positive with
around $0% of customers rating safety highly.
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STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 27 FEBRUARY 2021

(continued)

Section 172(1) Statement (continued)

Wider stakeholder engagement
(continued)

Throughout the year, the Board reviewed initiatives relating to the workforce
to ensure that our colleagues feel recogiised and rewarded for the work they
do, where they have the opportunity to get on and where they are supported
in their developnienit as they move through their caréers in the business,
while ensuring the health, safety arid wellbeing of all colleagues especially
through the pandemic putting in additional safety measures for colleague
both in store and in offices and additional policies to support the health and
wellbeing of colleagues. The Board are committed to providing an inclusive
working environment and during the year have received updates on the
progress of the diversity and irichision programine, nmanagement succession
and talent management, feedback from national forums and workforce
engagement forums and action plans following colleague engagement
survey - Every Voice Matters.

Further details on emiployee engagement are set out in the Directors’ Report
on pages 6 and 7. The Board places great importance on helping the
communities we serve. In support of the Group’s Little Helps Plan KPTs, the
Board review initiatives undertaken in store to support the 4Rs: remove,
reduce, reuse and recycle; and initiatives with suppliers to promote
sustainable sourcing, The Little Helps Plan targets include supporting local
commmunity projects and facilitating food surplus donations through our
stores.

The Board received regular updates on stakeholder engagement, customer
and marketing plans, product and loyalty initiatives, customer insights and
survey results, supplier survey results, the implementation of IR35 for
contractor§, approval of Gender Pay Gap Reporting and adoption of the
Group’s modetn slavery statement

In accordance with requirements this section 172(1) statement will be published on the Tesco PLC website at

www.tescoplc.com

Approved by the Board of Directors on 3 August 2021 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

J. Mg

Imran Nawaz

Director

Tesco Stores Limuted
Registered number: 00519500

Registered office: Tesco House, Shire Park, Kestrel Way, Welwyn Garden City, AL7 1GA, United Kingdom-
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TESCO STORES LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 27 FEBRUARY 2021

The Directors present their Annual Report and the audited financial statements of Tesco Stores Limited (the
“Company™) for the 52 weeks ended 27 February 2021 (prior period: 53 weeks ended 29 February 2020 (*2020™)).

Results and dividends

This is discussed in the Strategic Report on page 1.
Future developments

This is discussed in the Strategic Report on page 2.
Going concern

Although the Company remains in a nét current liability position, the Directors consider that the Comipany has
adéquate resources to remain in operation for a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing the financial
statements, whilst as detailed in the note on Liquidity Risk included in the Strategic Report, the Company also
has access if needed to a revolving credit facility. Therefore, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements. In undertaking their going concern asSessmerit, the Directors have considered
the potential impact of Brexit, the COVID-19 pandemiic, a macroeconomic downturn and climate risk, and have
concluded that there are no material uncertainties relating to going concern. For further details, please refer to the
Tesco PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021.

Events after the reporting period

Details of évents after the reporting period can be found in Note 31 to the financial statements.
Existence of branches outside the United Kingdom

The Company has a branch in the Isle of Man.

Political donations

There were no political donations for the period (2020: £nil) and the Company did not incur any political
expenditure (2020: £nil).

Financial risk management
This is discussed in the Strategic Report on page 3.
Employee engagement

We have continued to focus on ensuring that our policies are simple, helpful and trusted, so that our colleagues
are able to source the information they need quickly and easily. We have transitioned colleague self-service to
online. This support is now available to all colleagues, as it supports and enables an honest and transparent culture.
Continuous development of our Colleague Help service in the last year ensured colleagues receive information
directly and policies were better utilised. This platform continues to provide helpfiil feedback and analytics which
facilitate our understanding of how and where we can continue to improve our offer.

Over the last year we have continued to work with Usdaw, our recognised trade union in the UK, to improve our
policies so that they address the needs ofall our colleagues. These include several changes to our sickness absence
policy. These take into account the unique challenges posed by COVID-19, including ensuring that all colleagues
are paid company sick pay from the first day of any COVID-19 related absence, regardless of their entitlement
and excluding COVID-19 related absence from any attendance management processes. We have also made
changes to our flexible working policy to enable international remote working where appropriate in response to
the travel restrictions introduced as a result of the pandemic. Our local and national forums are invaluable for
giving colleagues a voice and ensuring they are engaged with business decisions. Such feedback helps us drive
our business forward as our colleagues are closest to our customers. To supplement these forums, we have also
continued our Colleague Contribution Panels (CCPs). These give our colleagues the opportunity to share their
views directly with our Non-executive Directors, who then relay them to the Board for discussion and action.
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 27 FEBRUARY 2021
(continued)

Employee engagement (continued)

Our equal opportunities, diversity and inclusiofi policies Support managers and colleagues in creating a diverse
and inclusive culture where everyone is welcome. Our policies demonstraté our commitment to providing equal
opportunities to all colleagues, irrespective of age, disability (including colleagues who may have become disabled
during service), gender, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy or maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, or
sexual orientation. Our aim is to attract and welcome a diverse range of applicants fromall different backgrounds.
All of our applicants and colleagues will be treated fairly, and we have a zero-tolerance approach, not only to
harassment but also to discrimination and bullying of any kind. This includes an expectation that our recruitment
systems are accessible and managers give a full and fair consideration to colleagues who have disabilities during
recruitment and subsequently throughout their career with Tesco, including colleagues who may become disabled
duting their employment wheré. every endeavour will bé made to retain colleagues through workplace
adjustments. We are also a proud Disability Confident Employer (level 2) offering various activities and .
programmes to attract, develop and retain disabled talent.

To further strengthen our commitment in this area, we have recently completed a review of all of our family-
friendly, flexible working and reasonable adjustments policies across the Group to establish common mininmm
standards exceeding legislative requirements, that we can adopt. This is with a view to improving diversity and
inclusion outcomes. We have also had a significant focus on creating and maintaining a culture that does not
tolerate harassment in any form This has included the relaunch of our Bullying and Harassment Policy and the
introduction of mandatory anti-harasSment training for all colleagues.

Our five colleague networks (LGBTQ+; Women at Tesco; Black Asian Minority Ethnic Network; Armed Forces
Network; and Disability Network) provide support in creating a diverse and inclusive culture where everyone is
welcome. To support our networks and commitments to inclusion we have signed several external commitments,
including: The BITC Race at Work Charter in 2019, the Sunday Times Open Letter in 2020 and the 30% Club to
improve gender balance across the business. We are proud to be a Disability Confident Employer as part of the
UK Government's Disability Confident scheme, a Global Diversity champion with Stonewall, and a gold member
of the UK Government’'s Armed Forces Covenant These external commitments help hold us to account in
continuing to create a culture of inclusion and an environment where all colleagues have the opportunity to get
on.

We actively encourage colleagues to become involved in the financial performmnce of our business through a
variety of share and bonus schemes. While we have recently agreed with our unions to consolidate the colleague
bonus scheme into basic pay for colleagues in stores, we continue to operate such schemes for other colleagues in
the business.

The Company had 262,532 employees on average during the 52 weeks ended 27 February 2021 (2020: 249,575).
Fostering of business relations

Details of the Company’s engagement with its stakeholders is included in the section 172(1) statement on pages
3to5.

Statement of compliance with Tesco Governance Code

For the year ended 27 February 2021, under The Companies (Miscéllaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018, the
Company has applied the Tesco Governance Code (the ‘Code’) which can be found on the Tesco PLC website at
www.tescoplc.com

At Tesco Stores Limited, we are committed to maintaining, high standards of corporate governance. Good
corporate governance is about implementing the right systems and structures the Company to facilitate effective
management and sound business decision making, Due to the large scale of Tesco Group’s operations and the
variety of business activities carried on, the Code provides gnidance on the minimum standard of governance
principles that the Group’s large UK incorporated companies should implement to achieve a high level of
corporate governance, while supporting directors in compliance with their statutory duties.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the Code. An overview of the how the Company
has applied the Code is detailed below. This statement of compliance can be found at www.tescoplc.com
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 27 FEBRUARY 2021
(continued)

Statement of compliance with Tesco Governance Code (continued)

Culture and Purpose

The Tesco Group purpose is to serve shoppers a little better every day and this sits at the heart of how we run the
business. Our purpose is underpiniied by stronig policies and procedures set out in the Tesco Code of Business
Conduct. It sets out the ways we can make the right decisions for our stakeholders, using the Group values and
leadership behaviours to ensure that through our conduct and decision-making we do the right thing for the
business and deliver our strategic objectives.

For example, during the period, initiatives undertaken in delivering the Company’s strategic objectives have been
the reduction in the use of plastic packaging, review of the Company’s Renewable Energy Strategy and entry into
a new revolving credit facility with interest linked to three environmental targets which align to the Group’s Little
Helps Plan principles. More information on the Board’s considerations when making decisions is set out on pages
4andS.

Board Effectiveness

The Board comprises five directors, with the necessary skills and experiences to fulfil the role and responsibilities
of the Board. Directors keep under review the size and composition of the Board to ensure it has the appropriate
balance of skills, knowledge and experience. Upon appointment, Directors receive induction training which
covers not only details on the operations of the business but also, amongst other things, guidance on their statutory
duties as a director to ensure they understand their role as a director and to whom they are accountable.

There is a schedule of matters reserved for its decision to ensure that the right decisions are being made in the
right forum and that there is appropriate oversight of them As is normal for a large business and as a subsidiary
of a larger Group, the Company complies with the Group Delegation of the Authority, seeking permission to
proceed where a significant business decision is required. However, the decision is ultimately taken by the Board
with background papers provided to support any decisions setting out any benefits and risks, the financial
implications and any relevant potential impact on stakeholders.

Directors are required to report actual or potential conflicts of interest to the Board for consideration and, if
appropriate, authorisation. If such conflicts exist, Directors excuse themselves from consideration of the relevant
matter. A Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance policy is maintained for all Directors providing cover in
respect of certain legal action brought against them.

The Board is supported by a Company Secretary who facilitates Board meetings including citculation of papers
in advance of a meeting, producing minutes to record Board decisions, assist on a range of governance related
matters and maintain corporate records.

Risk

When making decisions, the Board considers the relevant risks and ensures that mitigating steps are put in place
where appropriate and possible. Any sigpificant risks or concerns are highlighted to the Group Risk Team for
consideration through the Group Risk management process. The latter is reviewed on a regular basis and covers
all business units including the Company. This includes the maintenance of risk registers which detail the risks,
the risk movement and the relevant key controls and mitigating factors. These are reviewed on a regular basis by

the UK leadership team and the Executive Committee which helps to further promote sufficient oversight and
management of risk

Remuneration

The Tesco PLC Board has overall responsibility for reviewing renmneration and related policies across the Group
ensuring they are appropriate, fair and support the Group’s strategy, creating value for stakeholders. The
Remuneration Committee of the Tesco PLC Board approves the Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors and
senior managers, having regard to pay across the Group.

The Group is committed to rewatding colleagues with a total reward package that is competitive and provides
them with choice and that they really value. The Board ensure that remuneration is paid in line with Group
processes and the following principles:
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 27 FEBRUARY 2021
(continued)

Statement of compliance with Tesco Governance Code (conlinued)

Remuneration ( continued)

- Competitive: setting pay with reference to internal relativity and external market practices.
- Simple: helping all colleagues to understand how they are rewarded.
- Far: achieving consistent outcomes through flexible and transparent policies.

- Sustainable: aligning reward to business strategy and performance.
Energy and Carbon reporting

The Company’s Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) disclosures form a part of the' Group’s SECR
disclosures, which are discussed on page 100 of the Tesco PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021,
which does not form a part of this Report

Directors

The following Directors served during the period and up to the date of signing these financial statements:

D Lewis (Resigned on 30 September 2020)
A Morris

K Murphy (Appointed on 01 October 2020)
S Rigby

I Nawaz (Appointed on 01 May 2021)

A Stewart (Resigned on 30 April 2021)

J Tarry

None of the Directors had any disclosable interests in the Company during this period.

A qualifying third-party indemnity provision as defined in Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006 is in force for
the benefit of each of the Tesco PLC Directors listed above in respect of liabilities incurred as a result of their
office, to the extent permitted by law. In respect of those liabilities for which directors and officers may not be
indemnified, Tesco PLC maintained a Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance policy throughout the financial
period and up to the date of signing the financial statements.

Disclosure of information to auditor

Each Director who is a Director of the Company at the date of approval of these financial statements confirms
that:

¢ so far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant information of which the Company's auditor is
unaware; and

+ the Directors have taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Director to be aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Cautionary statement regarding forward-looking information

Where this document contains forward-looking statements, these are made by the Directors in good faith based
on the information available to themat the time of their approval of this Report. These statements should be treated
with caution due to the inherent risks and uncertainties underlying any such forward-looking information. A
number of factors, including those in this document, could cause actual results to differ materially from those
contained in any forward-looking statement.
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 27 FEBRUARY 2021
(continued)

Modern Slavery Act

As per section 54(1) of the Modern Slavery Act 2015, our Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement is published
annually on our Group website. The statement covers the activities of the Tesco PLC Group and its subsidiaries
and details policies, processes and actions we have taken to ensure that slavery and human trafficking are not
taking place in our supply chains or any part of our own business.

Directors’ Responsibilities Statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period. Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), including FRS 101 “Reduced
Disclosure Framework”. '

Under the Company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that
period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

o selectsuitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

o  make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

o prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Independent auditor

Deloitte LLP, having indicated its willingness to continue in office, will be deemed to be reappointed as auditor
under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 3 August 2021 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

J e

Imran Nawaz

Director

Tesco Stores Limited

Registered number: 00519500

Registered office: Tesco House, Shire Park, Kestrel Way, Welwyn Garden City, AL7 1GA, United Kingdom
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TESCO STORES
LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements of Tesco Stores Limited (the ‘Company’):

«  give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 27 February 2021 and of its profit for
the period then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘“Reduced Disclosure Framework™; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements of the Company which comprise:
* the profit and loss account;
+ the statement of comprehensive income;
¢ the balance sheet;
* the statement of changes in equity; and
* the related notes 1 to 31.

The financial reporting framiework that has béen applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s") Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing thé financial Statéments, we have concluded that the directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting included:

* obtained confirmation for the financing facilities including nature of facilities, repayment terms and covenants
to ensure that these facilities remain available at year-end;

» assessed the reasonableness of the assumptions used in the Group’s funding plan approved by the Board (which
included the impact of macro-economic downturn, COVID-19 and Brexit);

o tested the clerical accuracy and assessed the sophiétication of the model used to prepare the forecasts;

« reviewed the liquidity forecast to assess whether there is sufficient headroom;

o challenged the assumptions used within the Company’s going concern model;

» evaluated the historical accuracy of forecasts prepared by management;

o assessed the sensitivity of the headroom in manageiiient's forecasts; and

+ assessed the appropriateness of the Company’s disclosure concerning the going concern basis.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to. going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TESCO STORES
LIMITED (continued)

Other information

The other information comprfses the information included in the financial statements, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained
within the annual répoit. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other inforidation and, except
to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatemeént in the financial
statements themselves. If,‘based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thefe is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the Directors are responsnble for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, mmtters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit coriducted in accordarice
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
erfor and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below.

We considered the nature of the company’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the company’s
documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We
also enquired of management about their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the company operates in, and identified
the key laws and regulations that:

* had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. These
included UK Companies Act, pensions legislation, tax legislation; and

* do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the
company’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.

We discussed among the audit engagement team regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within
the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

13|Page



DocuSign Envelope ID: 26D4E12B-5736-4D5C-9B58-9A98E4E4885C

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TESCO STORES
LIMITED (continued)

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud (continued)

As aresult of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the recognition of commercial
income from buying arrangements with suppliers. Our specific procedures perforined to address it are described
below:

* obtaining an understanding of relevant controls the company has established in relation to commercial income
recognition;

* testing whether amounts recognised were accurate and recorded in the correct period, by agreeing to the
contractual performance obligations in a sample of individual supplier agreements;

* testing commercial income balances included within inventories and trade and other receivables, or netted
against trade and other payables via balance sheet reconciliation procedures;

* circularising a sample of suppliers to test whether the arrangements recorded were complete; where responses
from suppliers were not received, we completed alternative procedures such as agreement to underlymg
contractual arrangements;

* holding discussions with a sample of the company’s buying personnel to further uriderstand the buying processes;
* reviewing the impact of COVID-19 on arrangements with suppliers across the company;

* using data analytics to identify commercial income deals which exhibited characteristics of audit interest upon
which we completed detailed audit testing;

* reviewing the company’s ongoing compliance with the Groceries Supplier Code of Practice (GSCOP) and
additionally, reviewing the reporting and correspondence to the company’s supplier hotline in order to identify
any areas where further investigation was required; and

* assessing the adequacy of the disclosures made in relation to commercial income in the company’s financial
statements.

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to
the risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we
tested the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in
making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any
significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following;

. reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance
with provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

. performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate
risks of material misstatement due to fraud;

. enquiring of managemient and in-house legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and
claims, and instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

. reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and

reviewing correspondence with HMRC.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial period for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

. the Strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TESCO STORES
LIMITED (continued)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements (continued)
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 (continued)

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the courSe of
the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Strategic report or the Directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or teturns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visitéd by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of directors’ remmuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for out audit.

We have fiothing to report in respect of these matters.
Use of our report

This teport is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. ’

David Griffin FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

5 August 2021 -
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 27 FEBRUARY 2021

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit.

Administrative expenses

Operating profit

Interest receivable and similar income
Interest pa’yable and similar costs
Profit before tax:

Tax credit/(charge) on profit

Profit for the financial period

Notes

52 weeks ended 27 53 weeks ended 29

February 2021 February 2020
£m £m
42,451 42,951
(39,913) (40,315)
2,538 2,636
(1,111) (1,031)
1,427 1,605

7 125
(480) (579)
1,018 1,151
38 (110)

1,056 1,041

There are no material differences between the profit before tax and the profit for the financial period stated above

and their historical cost equivalents.

All operations are continuing for the financial period.

The notes on pages 21 to 60 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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TESCO STORES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021
52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended 29
Notes 27 February 2021 February 2020
£m £m
Profit for the financial period 1,056 1,041
Other comprehensive income:
Items that cannot be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension plan 25 (933) (315)
Income tax credit relating to items not reclassified 233 54
Items that may subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss
Cash flow hedges:
Reclassification adjustments for losses included in profit or loss @) ®)
Net fair value losses 39 12)
Income tax credif relating to cash flow hedges 7 3
Other comprehensive income for the financial period, net of tax (736) (278)
Total comprehénsive income for the financial peried 320 763

The notes on pages 21 to 60 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 27 FEBRUARY 2021

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Tangjble assets

Right of use assets

Investment properties

Investments

Debtors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Deferred tax assets

Derivative financial instruments

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors; amounts falling due within one year
Cash at bank and in hand

Derivative financial instruments

Assets classified as held for sale

Current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Lease liabilities

Corporation tax payable

Provisions for liabilities

Derivative financial instruments

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Lease liabilities

Provisions for liabilities

Post-employment bénefit obligations

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium

Merger reserve

Cash flow hedge reserve
Profit and loss account

Total shareholders® funds

12
13
14
15
16
19
10
2

17
18

11

20
14
10

22

21
14
23

Notes 27 February 2021 29 February 2020
£m £m
500 Y
10,240 10,076
5,413 5,495
12 17

465 -
560 369
773 610

1 -
17,964 17,084
1,278 1,287
1,795 4,972
661 947

2 11
3,736 7,217
9 28
3,745 7,245
(7,339) (7,367)
(496) (458)
(51 (207)
(&) 62)
(55) (23)
(7,972) 8,117)
“4,227) (872)
13,737 16,212
- (594)
(7,347) (7,511)
(46) (43)
(872) (2,730
(8,265) (10,878)
5,472 5,334
1,325 1,325
241 -
224 -
(48) 12
3,730 4,021
5,472 5,334
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TESCO STORES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

The notes on pages 21 to 60 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Thie fiaricial stateinents on pages 16 to 60 were approved by thie Board of Directots on 3 August 2021 and signed
on ifs behalf by: ‘ , 18

J e

Imran Nawaz

Director

Tesco Stores Limited

Registered number: 00519500 7

Registered office; Tesco House, Shire Park, Kestrel Way; Welwyn Garden City, AL7 1GA, United Kingdom
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TESCO STORES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021
Notes  Called Share Merger Cash  Profit Total
up share premium reserve flow and loss
capital @ ~hedge account
reserve
£m £m £fm £m £m £m
At 29 February 2020 1,325 - - (12) 4,021 5334
Profit for the financial period - - - - 1,056 1,056
Other comprehensive income for the - - - (36) (700)  (736)
financial period
Total comprehensive income for the - - - (36) 356 320
financial period
Transactions with owners
Issue of shares on account of acquisition ™ - 241 - - - 241
Merger reserve on acquisition - - 24 - - 224
Share based payment transactions 24 - - - - (647). (647)
At 27 February 2021 1,325 241 224 48 3,730 5472
Notes Called up Cash flow Profit and Total
share hedge loss
capital®  reserve  account
&m £m £m £m
At 23 February 2019 1,325 5 3,196 4,526
Profit for the financial period - - 1,041 1,041
Other comprehensive income for the financial period - a7 (261) (278)
Total comprehensive income for the financial period - a7 780 763
Transactions with owners
Share based payment transactions 24 - - 45 45
At 29 February 2020 1,325 12) 4,021 5,334

0 See Note 28 for a breakdown of the Called up share capital.
@ See Note 16 for details on the acquisition transaction.

() See Note 24 for a breakdown of the total share-based payment charge.

The notes on pages 21 to 60 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021

1. Autherisation of financial statements and statement of compliance with FRS 101

The financial statements of Tesco Stores Limited (the “Company”) for the 52 weeks ended 27 February 2021
were approved by the Board of Directors on 3 August 2021 and the Balance Sheet was signed on the Board’s
behalf by Imran Nawaz.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘“Reduced
Disclosure Framework” (“FRS 101”). As permitted by Schedule 1 to the Accounting Regulations, the presentation
of the financial statements has been adapted to be in line with the presentation prescribed by IAS 1. The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and the Companies Act 2006, except for certain
finaricial instruments, pension plan assets and share-based paymerits that have been measured at fair value. The
Company has used a true and fair view override to the Companies Act 2006 in respect of the non-amortisation of
goodwill (Note 3(e), "Accounting policies").

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Pound Sterling (£), generally rounded to the nearest million,
except when otherwise indicated. S

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 not to prepare
Group financial statements as it is a wholly owned subsidiary of Tesco PLC. The Company's results are included
in the consolidated financial statements of Tesco PLC, which are available from Tesco House, Shire Park, Kestrel
Way, Welwyn Garden City, AL7 1GA, United Kingdom.

2. General information

The Company is a private company limited by shares and is incorporated in the United Kingdom under the
Companies Act 2006 and registered in England and Wales. The address of the registered office is given on page
5. The nature of the Company’s operations and its principal activities are set out in the Strategic Report on page
1. The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have all been applied consistently throughout
the period and to the preceding period, unless otherwise stated.

3. Accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation

In preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recognition, measurement and disclosure
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted for use within the UK (*‘Adopted IFRSs™),
but makes amiendments where necessary in order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and has set out below
where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has been taken. Following the UK’s exit from the
European Union the Company has early adopted the FRS 101 amendments ‘UK exit from the European Union’.

The Company is a qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 101. Note 27 gjves details of the Company’s parent
and from where its consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS may be obtained. The
Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101:

o the requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ to present comparative
information in respect of
) paragraph 79(a)(iv) of IAS 1;
(ii) paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment;
(iii) paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38 Intangible Assets; and
(iv) paragraphs 76 and 79(d) of IAS 40 Investment Property

e paragraph 17 and 18A of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures;

the requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10(f), 134-136 and 40A of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial

Statements;

the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures;

the requirements of paragraphs 91-99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement;

the requirements of paragraphs 90,91 and 93 of IFRS 16 Leases;

the requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows;

the requirements of the second sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraph 113(a), 114, 115, 118, 119 (3)

to (c), 120 to 127 and 129 of IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with Customers;

o the requirements in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered into
between two or more members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which is a party to the transaction
is wholly owned by such a member; and

o the requirements of paragraphs 134(d)-134(f) and 135(c)-135(e) of IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

L4
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

3. Accounting policies (continued)

(b) New and revised IFRS applied with no material effect on the financial statements

The amendmerits in below standards wete adopted in the current period, and there is no impact on the financial
statements upon their adoption.

a  IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors’ to update a new definitiori of material in IAS 1. The amendments clarify the
definition of “material” and how it should be applied by including in the definition guidance that until
now. has featured elsewhere in IFRS Standards. The new definition clarifies that, information is
considered material if onntting, misstating, or obscuring such information, could réasonably be expected
to influence the decisions that the primary users of genéral-purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements. The definition of material in IAS 8 has beeii feplaced by a reference
to the definition of material in IAS 1.

b. IFRS 3 ‘Business Combination’ in connection with clarification of business definition, which help in
determining whether an acquisition made is of a business or a group of assets. The amendment added a
test that makes it easier to conclude that a Company has acquired a group of assets, rather than a business,
if the value of the assets acquired is substantially all concentrated in a single asset or group of similar
assets.

c. IFRS'16 ‘Leases’ providing lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent
concession is a lease modification. )

d. TFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform provide relief from potential effects of
the uncertainty caused by the IBOR reform In addition, the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their hedging relationships that are directly affected by these
uncertainties.

Other changes to standards, interpretations and amendments effective in the current period had no material impact
on the Company financial statements.

(c) Going concern

Although the Company remains in a net current liability position, the Directors consider that the Company has
adequate resources to remain in operation for a period of at least 12 months from the date of signing the financial
statements, whilst as detailed in the note on Liquidity Risk included in the Strategic Report, the Company also
has access if needed to a revolving credit facility. Therefore, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements. In undertaking their going concern assessment, the Directors have considered
the potential impact of Brexit, the COVID-19 pandemic, a macroeconomic downturn and climate risk, and have
concluded that there are no material uncertainties relating to going concern. For further details, please refer to the
Tesco PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021.

(d) Judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions in
applying the Company’s accounting policies to determine the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, with revisions to accounting estimates
applied prospectively.

Critical accounting judgements

Critical accounting judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that are applied in the preparation of the
financial statements are discussed below:

Leases

Management exercises judgement in determining the likelihood of exercising break or extension options in
determining the lease term Break and extension options are included to provide operational flexibility should the
economic outlook for an asset be different to expectations, and hence at commencement of the lease, break or
extension options are riot typically considered reasonably certain to be exercised, unless there is a valid business
reason otherwise.
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

3. Accounting policies (continued)

(d) Judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Crilicz'll.accoﬁnﬁn‘g judgements (continued)

Leases (continued)

The discount rate used to calculate the lease liability is the rate implicit in the lease, if it can be readily determined,
or the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate if not. Management uses the rate implicit in the lease where the lessor

is a related party (such as leases from joint ventures) and the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate for all other
leases.

Incremental borrowing rates are determiried monthly and depend on the term, country, currency and start date of
the lease. The incremental borrowing rate is determined based on a series of inputs including; the risk free rate
based on government bond rates; a country specific risk adjustment; a credit risk adjustment based on Tesco bond
yields; and an entity specific adjustment where the entity risk profile is different to that of the Group.

Refer to Note 14 for additional disclosures relating to leases.
Key sources of estimation and uncertainty

The key assumptions about the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting period end
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial period, are described below. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control
of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company treats each store as a separate cash-generating unit for impairment testing,
Recoverable amounts for cash-generating units are the higher of fair value less cost of disposal, and value in use.

Value in use is calculated from cash flow projections based on the Company’s three-year internal forecasts. The
forecasts are extrapolated to five years based on management’s expectations, and beyond five years based on
estimated long-term growth rates. Fair value is determined with the assistance of independent, professional valuers
where appropriate. Key estimates and sensitivities are disclosed in Note 12 and 13.

Commercial income

The Company is required to make estimates in determining the amount and timing of recognition of commercial
income (as defined in Note 3(e) under ‘Revenue recognition”) for some transactions with suppliers. In determining
the amount of volume related allowances recognised in any period, the Company estimates the probability that it
will meet contractual target volumes, based on historical and forecast perfbrmance. There is limited estimation
involved in recognising income for promotional and other allowances.

The Company assesses its performance against the obligations conditional on earning the income, with the income
recognised either over time as the obligations are met or recognised at the point when all obligations are met,
dependent on the contractual requirements. Commercial income is recognised as a credit within cost of sales.

Where the income edrned relates to stocks which are held by the Company at period ends, the incoie is included
within the cost of those stocks and recognised in cost of sales upon sale of those stocks.

The Management views that the cost of stocks sold (which is inclusive of commercial income) provides a
consistent and complete measure of the Profit and Loss Account impact of the overall supplier relationships.
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

3. Accounting policies (continued)

(d) Judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation and uncertainty (continued)
Stocks

A stock provision is booked for cases where the realisable value from sale of the stock is estimated to be lower
than the inventory carrying value. Management has estimated the inventory provisioning percentage for
different product categories based on various factors, including the expected sales profiles of the items, the
prevailing sales prices, the items' seasonality pattern and expected losses associated with slow-moving Stock
items. Refer to Note 17 for the disclosures.

Post-employment benefit obligations

The present value of post-employment benefit obligations is determined on an actuarial basis using various
assumptions, including the discount rate, inflation rate and mortality assumptions. Any changes in these
assumptions will impact the carrying amount as well as the net pension cost/(income). Key assumptions and
sensitivities for post-employment benefit obligations are disclosed in Note 25.

(e) Significant accounting policies
Foreign currency translation

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Pound Sterling (£), which is also the Company’s functional
currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate on the date of the
transaction. At the balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated to the functional currency at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account in the period in which they arise, apart from exchange differences
on transactions entered into to hedge certain foreign currency risks.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of the
consideration transferred and the amount recognised for the non-controlling interest over the net identifiable
amounts of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed in exchange for the business combination.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accunmlated impairment losses.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured
based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

'‘Company law (in particular paragraph 22 to the Regulations) requires goodwill to be written off over a finite
period. Non-amortisation of goodwill, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, is a
departure from the requirements of company law for the overriding purpose of giving a true and fair view. If this
departure from company law had not been made, the profit for the financial year would have been reduced by
amortisation of goodwill However, the amount of amortisation cannot reasonably be quantified other than by
reference to an arbitrary assumed period for amortisation.

24|Page



DocuSign Envelope ID: 26D4E12B-5736-4D5C-9B58-9A98E4E4885C

TESCO STORES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

3. Accounting policies (continued)

(e) Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets

Software and other intangible assets

Intangible assets, such as software and pharmacy licences, are measured initially at acquisition cost or costs
incurred to develop the asset. Intangible assets acquired ina business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Following initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. They are amortised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, of 3 to 10 years for software and up to 10 years for customer relationships. Research
costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is capitalised only if
specific criteria are met.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangjble fixed assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment in value.
Tangible fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis to their residual value over its anticipated useful
economic life.

The following depreciation rates were applied for the Company and are consistent with the prior period:

¢ Freehold buildings - 10 to 40 years;
¢ Plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings and motor vehicles - 3 to 10 years; and
o Freehold land is not depreciated.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at least annually by assessing the recoverable amount of each cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal, and value in use. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss
Account and is not subsequently reversed.

For all other non-financial assets (including intangible assets and tangible fixed assets) the Company performs
impairment testing where there are indicators of impairment. If such an indicator exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to bé less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss Account.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unif) is
increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had been recognised for the
asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately as a
credit to the Profit and Loss Account. V
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

3. Accounting policies (continued)

(e) Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment property

Investment property assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment in
value. The depreciation policies for investment property are consistent with those described for tangjble fixed
assets.

Investments

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are held at historical cost less any applicable provision for impairment.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through asale transaction and a sale is considerted highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.

Provision for liabilities
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Leases

Whether a contract is, or contains a lease is assessed at inception of the contract. A lease conveys the right to
direct the use and obtain substantially all of the economic benefits of an identified asset for a period of time in -
exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

A right of use asset and corresponding lease liability are recognised at commencement of the lease.

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments, discounted at the rate implicit in the
lease, or if that cannot be readily determined, at the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate specific to the term and
start date of the lease. Lease payments include: fixed payments; variable lease payments dependent on an index
or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at commencement; the exercise price under a purchase option if
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise; penalties for early termination if the lease term reflects the
Company exercising a break option; and payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option or not exercise a break option.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. It is
remeasured, with a corresponding adjustment to the right of use asset, when there is a change in future lease
payments resulting from a rent review, change in an index or rate such as inflation, or change in the Company’s
assessment of whether it is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase or extension option or not exercise a break
option.

The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, comprising; the initial lease liability; any lease payments already
made less any lease incentives received; initial direct costs; and any dilapidation or restoration costs. The right of
use asset is subsequently depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of
the underlying asset The right of use asset is tested for impairment if there are any indicators of impairment.

Leases of low value assets and short-term leases of 12 months or less are expensed to the income statement, as
are variable payments dependent on performance or usage, ‘out of contract’ payments and non-lease service
components.

Company as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Where the Company is an
intermediate lessor, the sub lease classification is assessed with reference to the head lease right of use asset.
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Company’s net
investment in the lease.
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

3. Accounting policies (continued)

(e) Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

Company as a lessor (continued)

Finarnce lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of réturn on the
Company’s net investment in the lease. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Sale and leaseback

A sale and leaseback transaction are where the Company sells an asset and immediately reacquires the use of the
asset by entering into a lease with the buyer. A sale occurs when control of the underlying asset passes to the
buyer. A lease liability is recognised, the associated tangible asset is derecognised, and a right of use asset is
recognised at the proportion of the carrying value relating to the right retained. Any gain or loss arising relates to
the rights transferred to the buyer.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are classified as either fair value through profit
and loss, fair value through other comprehensive income, or amortised cost. Classification and subsequent
remeasurement depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial asset and its cash flow
characteristics. Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost.

Debtors

Debtors including intercompany balances are recognised initially at fair value, and subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment including the expected credit loss.

j nvestments

Equity investments other than investment in subsidiaries and associates have been irrevocably designated as at
fair value through other comprehensive income. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and are not subsequently reclassified to the Company Profit and Loss
Account, including on derecognition. Impairment losses are not recognised separately from other changes in fair
value.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECLs) associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost and debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income. The ECLs
are updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk.

The three-stage model for impairment has been applied to loans and advances to customers and banks, debt
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income, and loan receivables from joint ventures and
associates. The credit risk is determined through modelling a range of possible outcomes for different loss
scenarios, using reasonable and supportable information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future events and econiomic conditions and taking in to account the time value of money. A 12-month ECL is
recognised, unless the credit risk on the financial asset increases significantly after initial recognition, when the
lifetime ECL is recognised.

For debtors and other receivables, contract assets and lease receivables, the Company applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, with lifetime ECLs recognised from initial recognition of the receivable. These
assets are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and days past due, with ECLs for each risk grouping
determined based on the Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors specific to each
receivable, general economic conditions and expected changes in forecast conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

3. Accounting policies (continued)

{(e) Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are initially recorded at fair value, net of attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between proceeds and redemption value being recognised in the Profit and Loss Account over the period of the
borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Creditors

Creditors including intercompany balances are recognised initially at fair value, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Derivative financial instruments and heédge accounting

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange, interest rate and
commodity risks arising from operating, financing and investing activities. The Company does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised and stated at fair value. Where derivatives do not qualify for hedge
accounting, any gains or losses on remeasurement are immediately recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.
Where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature
of the hedge relationship and the item being hedged.

At inception of designated hedging relationiships, the Company documents the risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking the hedge, the nature of the risks being hedged and the economic relationship between
the item being hedged and the hedging instrument, including whether the change in cash flows of the hedged item
and hedging instrument are expected to offset each other.

As permitted under IFRS 9, the Company has elected to continue to apply the existing hedge accounting
requirements of IAS 39 for its portfolio hedge accounting until a new mmcro hedge accounting standard is
implemented. Derivative financial instruments with maturity dates of more than one year from the balance sheet
date are disclosed as non-current.

Cash flow hedging

Derivative financial instruments are classified as cash flow hedges when they hedge the Company’s exposure to
variability in cash flows that are either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or
liability, or a highly probable forecasted transaction. The effective element of any gain or loss from remeasuring
the derivative instrument is recognised directly in statement of comprehensive income and the ineffective element
is recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss Account within interest income or costs.

Where the hedged item subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset such as stock, the amounts
accumulated in the hedging reserve and currency basis teserve are included in the initial cost of the asset For all
other cash flow hed ges, the amounts accumulated in the hed ging reserve and currency basis reserve are recognised
in the Profit and Loss Account when the hedged item or transaction affects the Profit and Loss Account

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. The
cumulative gain or loss in other comprehensive income remains until the forecast transaction occurs or the original
hedged item affects the Profit and Loss Account. If a forecast hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the cumulative gain or loss in other comprehensive income is reclassified to the Profit and Loss Account.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a current
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to seftle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

3. Accounting policies (continued)

(e) Significant accounting policies (continued)
Stocks

Stocks comprise goods and development properties held for resale. Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value using the weighted average cost basis. Directly attributable costs and incomes (including
applicable commeicial income) are included in the cost of stocks.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and in hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less.

Income taxes

Current tax, including United Kingdom (UK) corporation tax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts expected to
be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance
Sheet date. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit différs from net
profit as reported in the Profit and Loss Account because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other periods and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.

Tax provisions are recognised for uncertain tax positions where a risk of an additional tax liability has been
identified and it is probable that that the Company will be required to settle that tax. Measurement is dependent
on subjective judgements as to the outcome of decisions by tax authorities in the various tax jurisdictions in which
the Company operates. This is assessed on a case by case basis using in-house tax experts, professional firms and
previous experience.

Group relief on taxation

The Company may receive or surrender group relief from group companies without payment and consequently
there may be no tax charge in the Profit and Loss Account.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accourted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or from the initial recognition (othér than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Conpany is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. The
carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or
the asset is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the Profit and Loss Account, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case deferred tax is also recognised
in equity or other comprehensive income, respectively. 4
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

3. Accounting policies (continued)

(e) Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax (continued),

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current tax and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account, except when they relate to items that are
recogpised in other comptehensive income or directly in equity, in which casé, the current and deferred tax are
also recogpised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Pension and other post-employment benefit obligations

The Company participates in defined benefit pension schemes and cannot identify its share of the underlying
assets and liabilities of the schemes.

Therefore, in accordance with Group policy, as the vast majority of Tesco Group’s employees and Scheme
members are or were employed by this subsidiary, the entire net defined benefit deficit relating to the UK scheme
is recognised by the Company, and the Company accounts for this scheme as defined beriefit plan. There is rio
contractual agreement or agreed policy for recharges. The Company also participates in a defined contribution
scheme open to all UK colleagues. Payments to this scheme are recognised as an expense as they fall due.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is income arising from the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of the Company’s activities,
net of value added taxes. Revenue is recognised when performance obligations are satisfied and control has
transferred to the customer. For the majority of revenue streams, there is a low level of judgement applied in
determining the transaction price or the timing of transfer of control.

Sale of goods

The sale of goods represents the Company’s revenue. For goods sold in store, revenue is recognised at the point
of sale. For online or wholesale sales of goods, revenue is recognised on collection by, or delivery to, the customer.
Revenue is reduced by a provision for expected returns (refund liability). An asset and corresponding adjustment
to cost of sales is recognised for the Company’s right to recover goods from customers.

Clubcard (Customer loyalty programme)

Clubcard points issued by Tesco when a customer purchases goods are a separate performance obligation
providing a material right to a future discount. The total transaction price (sales price of goods) is allocated to the
Clubcard points and the goods sold based on their relative standalone selling prices, with the Clubcard points
standalone price based on the value of the points to the customer, adjusted for expected redemption rates
(breakage). The amount allocated to Clubcard points is deferred as a contract liability within creditors and other
payables. Revenue is recognised as the points are redeémed by the customer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
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3. Accounting policies (continued)

(e) Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Commercial income

Consistent with standard industry practice, the Company has agreements with suppliers whereby volume-related
allowances, promotional and marketing allowances and various other fees and discounts are received in
connection with the purchase of goods for resale from those suppliers. Most of the income received fromsuppliers
relates to adjustments to a core cost price of a product, and as such is considered part of the purchase price for that
product. Sometimes receipt of the income is conditional on the Company performing specified actions or
satisfying certain perfomnnce conditions associated with the purchase of the product These include achieving
agreed purchases or sales volume targets and providing promotional or marketing materials and activities or
promotional product positioning, Whilst there is no standard industry definition; these amounts receivable from
suppliers in connection with the purchase of goods for resale are generally termed commercial income.

Commercial income is recognised when earned by the Company, which occurs when all obligations conditional
for eatning income have been discharged, and the income can be measured reliably based on the terms of the
contract. The income is fecognised a3 a credit within cost of sales. Where the income earned relates to stocks
which are held by the Company at the reporting date, the income is included within the cost of those stocks and
recognised in cost of sales upon sale of those stocks.

Amounts due relating to commercial income are recognised within other debtors, except in cases where the
Company currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off and intends to offset amounts due from suppliers
against amounts owed to those suppliers, in which case only the net amount receivable or payable is recognised.
Accrued commercial income is recognised within accrued income when commercial income earned has not been
invoiced at the balance sheet date.

Interest receivable and similar income

Interest income is recognised in the period to which it relates using the effective interest method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to its net carrying amount.

Interest payable and similar costs

Finance costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised. Qualifying
assets are those that necessarily take a substantial period of time to prepare for their intended use and from which
future economic benefits are expected to arise. All other bortowing costs are recognised in the Profit and Loss
Account in interest expense in the period in which they occur.

Dividend income

Income from shares in group undertakings is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account when the shareholder's
right to payment is established, that is on declaration of the dividend by the subsidiary.

Share-based payments

Some employees of the Company receive part of their remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (equity-settled
transactions). The fair value of employee share option plans is calculated at the grant date using either the Monte
Carlo or Black-Scholes models. The resulting cost is charged to the Profit and Loss Account over the vesting
period. The value of the charge is adjusted to reflect expected and actual levels of vesting, Options awarded to
employees are for share capital of Tesco PLC. This is treated as a capital contribution to the reserves of the

Company.
4. Revenue

The Company operates within one business segment being that of the operation of retail stores and associated
activities with business transacted in the United Kingdom (UK).
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

S. Operating profit

52 weeks ended 27 53 weeks ended 29

February 2021 February 2020
£m £m

Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):
Investment property rental income (18) (21)
Othier rental income (58) (59)
Direct expenses for investment properties generating rental income 7 3

Depreciation and amortisation: '

Tangib_lq assets (Note 13) 562 557
Right of use assets (Note 14) ) 485 487
Intangible assets (Note 12) 129 118
Net impairment reversal for tangible assets (Note 13) (82) (167)
Net impairment (reversal)/charge for right of use assets (Note 14) 39 211
Net impairment charge/(reversal) for intangible assets (Note 12) 18 @)
Cost of stocks recognised as an expense (included in cost of sales) 30,791 31,782
Property provision release (18) 110)
Stock losses and provisions 794 846
Profit on property transactions (3) (30)
Restructuring and redundancy cost (Note 23) (10) 101
Guaranteed minimum pensions (GMP) equalisation (Note 25) 2 -
ATM rates - (105)

Significant items in operating profit:
Net impairment reledse on tdn_gz'ble fixed assets, right of use assets and intangibles

Included within net impairment of non-current assets in the year is a net release of £103m, comprising of a net
impairment release on tangible assets of £82m, a net release on right of use assets of £39m and a net charge on
intangible assets of £18m. This is included in cost of sales.

Property transactions

The Company generated net profit (pre-tax) of £8m felating to various property transactions. This is recorded as
part of administrative expenses.

6. Auditor’s remuneration

The Company paid the following amounts to its auditor in respect of the audit of the financial statements.

52 weeks ended 27 53 weeks ended 29

February 2021 February 2020
£000 £000
Audit of the financial statements : . . 96 96

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption not to disclose amounts paid for non-audit services as these
are disclosed in the group financial statements of its ultimate parent, Tesco PLC.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

7. Staff costs and Directors’ remuneration

(a) Staff costs
52 weeks ended 27 53 weeks ended 29
February 2021 February 2020
£m £m
Wages and salaries 4,077 3,723
Social security costs 266 232
Post-employment defined benefits (Note 25) 27 28
Post-employment defined contributions (Note 25) 281 301
Share based payment expense (Note 24) . 51 98
Termination benefits charge 31 101
Total staff costs 4,733 4,483

Post-employment defined contribution charges include £124m (2020: £115m) of salaties paid as pension
contributions.

The avetage monthly number of employees during the period was 262,532 (2020: 249,575) and the average
number of full-time equivalents was 151,496 (2020: 151,541).

(b) Directors’ remuneration

52 weeks ended 27 53 weeks ended 29

February 2021 February 2020
£m £m
Directors’ remuneration 6 9

There were no payments for loss of office or retirement in the period.

52 weeks ended 27 53 weeks ended 29

February 2021 February 2020
£m £m

In respect of highest paid Director:
Aggregate remuneration 1 4

In the current and prior financial period, the highest paid Director was not a member of the Company’s defined
benefit pension scheme.

52 weeks ended 27 53 weeks ended 29

February 2021 February 2020
No. No.
Number of Directors who received shares in respect of qualifying 4 5

services

In the current financial period share options were exercised by three Directors (2020: two Directors). In current
and prior financial period, shares were received under a long-term incentive scheme by the highest paid Director.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED

27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

8. Interest receivable and similar income

52 weeks ended 27 53 weeks ended 29

February 2021 February 2020

£m £m

Interest receivable on loans to Group undertakings 69 112

Other interést receivable 2 13

Total interest receivable and similar income 71 125
9. Interest payable and similar costs

52'weeks ended 27 53 weeks ended 29

February 2021 Februdry 2020

£m £m

Other interest payable - 16

Interest payable on loans from Group undertakings 11 39

Finance charges payable on lease liabilities 423 443

Unwinding of discount on provisions 1 1

Net pension finance costs (Note 25) 42 67

Financial instruments — fair vatue remeasurements 3 13

Total interest payable and similar costs 480 579

10. Tax credit/(charge) on profit
(a) Factors that have affected the tax credit/(charge)

The standard rate of corporation tax in'the UK at the balance sheet date is 19%. This gjves a corporation tax rate
for the Company for the full period of 19% (2020: 19%).

The UK Budget 2021 announcements on 3 March 2021 included measures to support economic recovery as a
result of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. These included an increase to the UK’s main corporation tax rate to
25%, which is due to be effective from 1 April 2023. These changes were not substantively enacted at the balarice
sheet date and hence have not been reflected in the measurement of deferted tax balances at the period end. The
Company has assessed the impact of the change in rate on its deferred tax assets and liabilities and the impact
would be to increase the deferred tax assets at the balance sheet date by £150m

(b) Tax credit/(charge) in the Profit and Loss Account
The analysis of the credit/(charge) for the period is as follows:

52 weeks ended 27 53 weeks ended 29
February 2021 February 2020
£m £m

Current income tax:
UK corporation tax on profit for financial period (186) (117)
Foreign tax ) @)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 119 28
Total current income tax charge (71) (93)

Deferred tax:

Current period 68 (34)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 22 13
Impact of rate change adjustment 19 4
Total deferred tax credit/(charge) 109 (17)
Total tax credit/(charge) in the Profit and Loss Account 38 (110)
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27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

10. Tax credit/(charge) on profit (continued)

(c) Tax onitems credited directly to Statement of Changes in Equity:

Deferred tax charge:

Share based payments
Current tax credit:

Shdre based payiments
Total tax charge to Equity”

(d) Tax relating to components of the Statement of Comprehensive Income:

Deferred tax credit on:
Defined benefit pension plan
Cash flow hedges

Current tax credit on:
Defined benefit pension plan
Total tax credit to Other Comprehensive Income

(e) Reconciliation of the tax charge

52 weeks ended 27 53 weeks ended 29
February 2021 February 2020
£m £m.

(10) ®

7 R

(€] (1)

52 weeks ended 27 53 weeks ended 29
Febriuary 2021 February 2020
£m £m

57 54

7 3

64 57

176 -

240 57

The differences between the total charge shown above and the amount calculated by appfying the UK corporation

tax rate to profit is as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax char geat standard UK corporafion tax rate of 19% (2020:
19%)

Effects of:

Non-qualifying depreciation

Non-qualifying impairment reversal

Other non-deductible items

Profit on property disposals not taxable or available for tax relief
Share based payments

Adjustments in respect of prior periods

Impact of rate change adjustment

Group relief received without payment

Movement in provision for uncertain tax positions

Unrelieved foreign tax

Total tax credit/ (charge)

Effective tax rate %

52 weeks ended 27 > W;:::fu i’r’dezdoig
February 2021£m y e
£m

1,018 1,151

193) (21§j

(20) (20)

17 29

23 1)

G 17

[} 5)

141 9

19 4

57 79

: @

- (1)

38 (110)

(3.73%) 9.56%

Adjustments in respect of prior periods inchude tax credits of £109m in relation to uncertain tax positions and
£21min relation to rolled over gains and capital losses on property disposals.
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27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

10. Tax credit/(charge) on profit (continued)
(f) Current tax liabilities
Current tax liabilities were as follows:

27 February 2021 29F eBru’ary 2020

£m £m
UK corporation tax payable 51 207
Total corporation tax payabie ) 51 207.

() Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities)/assets recognised by the Company and moveinerits thereon
during the current and prior financial periods measured using the tax rates that are expected to apply when the
liability is settled or the asset realised based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the Balarice Sheet date.

Accelerated Short term Share Property Pension Financial  Transitional Transitional Total
capital timing based related instruments  Adjustments Adjustments
allowances differences payments items -Fimancial -IFRS 16
instruments
£m £m fm  fm  £m £m £m fm  £m
At 29 February (55) 5 36 (129 464 2 1 281 610
2020 ) .
Credit/(charge) in 46 32 6 (12 7 1 - 19 87
Profit and Loss
Account - current
period
Credit/(charge) in ) 2 1 20 - - - 10 22
Profitand Loss
Account - prior.
periods
Charged to other = - - - 57 7 - - 64
comprehensive
income
Charged to equity - - (10) - - - - - (10
At 27 Februsry (16) 35 21 (116) 528 10 1 310 773
2021

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only where the Company has a legally enforceable ri‘g,ht to do so and
where assets and liabilities relate’to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority. h
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

11; Assets classified as held for sale

The following non-current assets are classified as held for sale and included within net assets:
27 February 2021 29 February 2020

£m £m
Assets classified as held for sale 9 28
9 28
The assets classified as held for sale consist of properties in the UK.
12. Intangible assets
Software. Goodwill Other Total
intangible
assets
£m £m £m £m
Cost
At 29 February 2020 778 131 48 957
Additions 132 - - 132
Disposals (95) - - (%5)
At 27 February 2021 815 131 48 994
Accumulated amortisation/impairment
At 29 February 2020 (419) - (21) (440)
Charge for the period (129) - - (129)
Disposals 93 - - 93
Impairment charge (23) - 3) (26)
Reversal of impairment losses 8 - - 8
At 27 February 2021 470 - 4) (494)
Net book value
At 27 February 2021 345 131, 24 500
At 29 February 2020 359 131 27 517

Assessment of the carrying value of goodwill

Goodwill has been allocated to the grouping of all stores within the Company in the UK. This represents the
lowest level within the Company at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
not amortised but is reviewed for impairment on an annual basis, or more frequeritly if there are indications that
goodwill may be impaired. An impairment review was performed by comparing the carrying value of goodwill
with the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated. The recoverable
amount for the group of cash generating units is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal.

The key estimates for the value in use calculations are those regarding discount rate, giowth rate and expected
changes in margins. Management estimates the discount rate using the pre-tax rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the cash-generating unit.

Cash flow projections are based on the Company's three-year internal forecasts, extrapolated to five years, the
results of which are reviewed by the Board.
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12. Intangible assets (continued)
Assessment of the carrying value of goodwill (continued)

Estimates of selling prices and direct costs are based on past experience and expectations of future changes in the
matket. The pre-tax discount rate of 5.9% (2020: 8.0%) used to calculate the value in use range is derived from
the Group's post-tax weighted average cost of capital, as adjusted for the specific risks relating to each cash-
generating unit. On a post-tax basis, the discount rate is 4.8% (2020: 6.6%). The forecast is extrapolated to five
years based on management’s expectations and extrapolated beyond five years based-on an estimated long-term
average growth rate of 1.9% (2020: 2.0%). The impairment methodology of intangjble assets other than goodwill
is set out in Note 13.

13. Tangible assets
Land and buildings Plant and equipment, Total
fixtures and fittings
and motor. vehicles

£m £m £m
Cost
At 29 February 2020 13,501 3,671 17,172
Additions 284 381 665
Disposals (69) @71 (340)
Reclassification ©) 5 -
Classified as held for sale 31 - 31
At 27 February 2021 13,742 3,786 17,528
Accumulated
depreciation/impairment
At 29 February 2020 (4,439) (2,657) (7,096)
Charge for the period (274) (288) (562)
Impairment charge- (176) (116) (292)
Reversal of impairment losses 355 19 374
Disposals 45 260 305
Classified as held for sale W) - (17)
At 27 February 2021 (4,506) (2,782) (7,288)
Net book value
At 27 February 2021 9,236 1,004 10,240
At 29 February 2020 9,062 1,014 10,076

Assets under construction included above 27 February2021 29 February 2020

£m £m
Land and buildings 50 52
Plant and equipment 154 !
204 123
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

13. Tangible assets (continued)

Additions at cost includes £nil (2020: £nil) in respect of interest capitalised. The net impairment release for the
period of £82m s all included in cost of sales. Assets under construction does not include land.

Impairment of intangible assets other than goodwill, tangible assets, right of use assets and investment
property

The Company treats each store as a separate cash-generating unit for impairment testing of intangjble assets other
than goodwill, tangible assets, right of use assets and investment property. The recoverable amount for each cash-
generating unit is the higher of its value in use or fair value less costs of disposals.

Fair values of owned properties are determined with regard to the market rent for the stores or for alternative uses
with investment yields appropriate to reflect the physical characteristics of the property, location, infrastructure,
redevelopment potential and other factors. In some cases, fair values include residual valuations where stores may
be viable for redevelopment. Fair values of leased properties are determined with regard to the discounted market
rent for the property ovet the remaining périod of the lease, reflecting the condition and location of the property
and the local rental market, adjusted for a suitable void period. Fair values of the Company’s properties were
determined with the assistance of independent professional valuers where appropriate. Costs of disposal are
estimated based on past experience.

Estimates for value in use calculations include discount rates, long-term growth rates and expected changes to
future cash flows, including volumes and prices and probabilities assigned to cash flow scenarios. Estimates are
based on past experience and expectations of future changes in the market, including the prevailing economic
climate and global economy, competitor activity, market dynamics, changing customer behaviours, structural
challenges facing retail and the resilience afforded by the Company’s operational scale.

Cash flow projections are based on the Company’s three-year internal forecasts, the results of which are reviewed
by the Board. The forecasts are extrapolated to five years based on management’s expectations, and beyond five
years based on estimated long-term average growth rates. Long-term growth rates are based on inflation forecasts
by recognised bodies.

In the current year, the Company applies an expected cash flow approach by probability-weighting different cash
flow scenarios. The greatest probability weighting is applied to the cash flows derived from the three-year internal
forecasts. Additional scenarios take account of the risk presented by Brexit, COVID-19, a macro-economic
downturn and climate change as well as an upside scenario.

Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect the market assessment as at the balance sheet
date of the time value of money and the risks specific to the cash-generating units. The pre-tax discount rates are
derived from the post-tax weighted average cost of capital The risk-free rate is based on an applicable government
bond rate and the equity risk premium is based on forecasts by recognised bodies. The pre-tax discount rate used
i55.9% (2020: 8.0%) and the post-tax discount rate is 4.8% (2020: 6.6%). The estimated long-termaverage growth
rate used was 1.9% (2020: 2.0%).

The Company has carried out sensitivity analyses on the reasonably possible changes in key assumptions in the
impairment tests for intangible assets other than goodwill, tangible fixed assets and right of use assets. While there
is not a significant risk of an adjustment to the carrying amount of any one store cash-generating unit that would
be material to the Company in the next financial year, the table below summarises the reasonably possible changes
in each key assumption and its isolated impact on the impairment of the entire portfolio of store cash-generating
units, presented in aggregate due to the large number of individually immaterial store cash-generating units:

Impairment Increase/(Decrease) 27 February 2021 29 February 2020

£m £m
1% increase in post-tax discount rates 331 337
1% decrease in post-tax discount rates 301) (327)
1% increase in long term growth rates 207 (268)
1% decrease in long term growth rates 211 266
5% increase in property fair values (68) 57
5% decrease in property fair values 65 70
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

14. Leases

Lease liabilities represent rentals payable by the Company for certain of its retail, distribution and office properties
and other assets such as motor vehicles. The leases have varying terins, purchase options, escalation clauses and
renewal rights. Purchase options and renewal rights, where they occur, are at market value. Escalation claunses are
in line with market practices and include inflation linked, fixed rates, resets to market rents and hybrids of these.

In prior years, the Company sold and leased back properties to and from Group-related joint ventures over 20-to
30-year terms. On some of these transactions the Compaiy also has a lease-break option, which is exercisable if
the Group’s buyback option is exercised and the associated debt in the joint venture is repaid. The lease liability
in respect of thesé leases assumes that the lease-break option is not exercised.

Right of use assets

Land and Plant and Total
buildings  equipment, fixtures
and ﬁttings and
motor vehicles

At 27 February 2021 and for the 52 weeks ended 27 £m £m £m
February 2021
Net carrying value at 29 February 2020 5,463 32 5,495
Additions and modifications 434 - 434
Depreciation charge for the year (470) 195 (483)
Disposals (70) - (70)
Reclassification ) 2 -
Impairment charge (180) - (180)
Reversal of impairment losses 219 - 219
Net carrying value at 27 February 2021 5,394 19 5,413
Land and Plant and Total

buildings equipment, fixtures
and fittings and

motor vehicles

At 29 February 2020 and for the 53 weeks ended 29 £m £m £m
February 2020

Net carrying value at 23 Febmary 2019 6,063 50 6,113
Additions and modifications 143 : 143
Depreciation charge for the year (469) (18) (487)
Disposals (63) - (63)
Impairment charge (451) - (451)
Reversal of impairment losses 240 - 240
Net carrying value at 29'February 2020 5,463 32 5,495
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED

27 FEBRUARY: 2021 (continued)

14. Leases (continued)
Impairment of right of use assets

Impairment of right of use assets is described in Note 13.

Lease liabilities

The following tables show the discounted lease liabilities included in the Company balance sheet and a maturity

analysis of the contractual undiscounted lease payments:

Lease liabilities
Current
Non-current

Total lease liabilities

Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted lease payments
Within one year

Greater than one year but less than five years

Greater than five years but less than ten years

Gredter than ten years but less than fifteen years

After fifteen years

Total undiscounted lease payments

Amounts recognised in the Profit and Loss Account

Interest on lease liabilities

Future possible cash outflows not included in the lease liability

27 February 2021. 29 February 2020
£m £m
496 458
7,347 7,511
7,843 7,969
27 February 2021 29 February 2020
£m £m
891 871
3,408 3,362
3,412 3,604
2,181 2,234
1,728 2,012
11,620 12,083
52 weeks ended 27 53 weeks ended 29
February 2021 February 2020
£m £m
424 443

The Company is committed to payments (undiscounted) totalling £36m (2020: £39m) in relation to leases that

have been signed but have not yet commenced.
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14, Leases (continued)
Company as lessor

52 weeks ended 27 53 weeks'ended 29
February 2021 February 2020

im £m
Amounts recognised in the Profit and Loss Account
Finance ledse — interest incoine' 2 2
Operating lease — rental income? 20 21

' Includes £2m (2020: £2m) of sub l¢ase interest income.
2Includes £12m (2020: £11m) of sub lease rental income.

27 February 2021 29 February 2020

£m £m
Undiscounted finance lease payments to be received
Within one year 3 3
Greater than one year but less than two years 4 3
Greater than two years but less than three years 3 3
Greater than three years but léss than four years 3 3
Greater than four years but less than five years 3 3
Greater than five years but less than ten years 6 9
Total undiscounted finance lease payrhents receivable 22 24
Unearned finance income ' 19 (149)
Net investment in the lease included in the Company 8 10

Balance Sheet

27 February 2021 29 February 2Q20

£m £m
Undiscounted operating lease payments to be received
Within one year 21 22
Greater than one year but less than two years 17 19
Greater than two years but less than three years 13 15
Greater than three years but less than four years 10 12
Greater than four years but less than five years 7 8
Greater than five years but less than ten years 22 22
Greater than ten years but less than fifteen years 8 7
After fifteen years 31 30
Total undiscounted finance lease payments receivable 129 135
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15. Investment properties

£m
Cost
At 29 February 2020 28
Disposal 4
At 27 February 2021 24
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
At 29 February 2020 ' (11)
Charge for the period -
Charge of impairment loss 3)
Reversal of impairment loss 2
At 27 February 2021 ' a2
Net book value
At 27 February 2021 12
At 29 February 2020 17

The estimated fair value of thie Company’s investment property is £121m (2020: £148m). This fair value has been
determined by applyingan appropriate rental yield to the rentals earned by the investment propeity. A valuation
has not been performed by an independent valuer.

In the period there has been a £1m net impairment charge (2020: £4m) for investment properties which has been
recognised within administrative expenses.

16. Investments
27 February 2021 29 February 2020
£m £m

Investments in subsidiaries 465 -
465 -

During the current period, the Company acquired companies in two of the Group’s property structures, The Tesco
Red Limited Partnership and The Tesco Aqua Limited Partnership, from other Group companies. The
consideration was settled in shares of the Company, with £600 of share capital issued by the Company and £241m
share premium with the balance £224m recorded within merger reserve.

Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment.
The Company tests the investments balances for impairment annually or when there are indicators of impairment,
by employing value in use model. There was no impairment required for these investments.

Related undertakings of the Company

In accordance with Schedule 4 of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008, a full list of related undertakings, the registered office address, the place of incorporation and
the percentage of share class owned as at 27 February 2021 are disclosed on pages 44 and 45. All undertakings
are directly owned by the Company unless otherwise stated. Footnotes are included on page 45.
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16 Investments (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings Registered | Place of Proportion | Share class
office incerporation of voting’
address rights and
shares held
Bath Upper Bristol Road (1) England and 100% Guarantee
Management Company Limited (i) ‘ Wales ° Membership
Broughton Retail Park Nominee 1 England and ~ .
- 1) 100% Ordinary shares
Limited ( Wales
Broughton Retail Park Nominee 2 England and .
o 1) 100% Ordinary shares
Limited ( Wales
Eirgitéton Retail Park Nominee 3 (1) Eng\;?:ltisand 100% Ordinary shares
Broughton Retail Park Nominee 4 England and .
I 1) 100% Ordinary shares
Limited ( Wales
Cardiff Cathays Terrace Management (1) England and 100% Guarantee
Company Limited (i) Wales ’ Membership
Motorcause Limited (in liquidation) @) England and 100% Ordinary shares
' Wales
Oxford Fox and Hounds (1) England and 100% Guarantee
Management Company Limited (i) Wales ? Membership
Seacroft Green Nominee 1 Limited (1 England and 100% Otdinary shares
Wales
Seacroft Green Nominee 2 Limited (1) England and 100% Ordinary shares
Wales
Spen Hill Residential No 1 Limited (1) England and 100% Ordinaty shares
Wales '
Spen Hill Residential No 2 Limited (1) England and 100% Ordinary shares
Wales
Tesco Aqua (GP) Limited (1 Eng\iz;:ld and 100% Ordinacy shares
es
Tesco Aqua (3LP) Limited (1) Eng\i:;larid and 100% Ordinary shares
es
Tesco Aqua (Nominee Holdco) England and .
- 1) 100% Ordinary shares
Limited ( Wales
Tesco Aqua (Nominee 1) Limited M) Engvl\?:ld and 100% Ordinary shares
es
Tesco Aqua (Nominee 2) Limited o Eng\i?:ld and 100% Ordinary shares
es
Tesco Aqua Unit Trust England and .
¢} 100% Units
Wales
Tesco Employees’ Share Scheme England and .
Trustees Limited (ii) M Wales >0% Ordinary shares
Tesco FFC Limited (in liquidation) ®) England and 100% Ordinary shares
Wales
Il;ie:ri::i;)eﬁroperty Nominees (No. 5) (1) Eng\;':;x:l(is and 100% Ordinary shares
Tesco Property Nominees (No.6) England and .
o 1)) 100% Ordinary shares
Limited Y Wales
Tesco Red (GP) Limited (1) Engvl\?;ll(isand 100% Ordinary shares
Tesco Red (3LP) Limited ) Eng\;;l:ld and 100% Ordinary shares
es
Tesco Red (Nominee Holdco) England and .
o 1) 100% Ordinary shares
Limited ( Wales
Tesco Red (Nominee 1) Limited (1) Eng\i?.:lcismd 100% Otdinary shares
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27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

Tesco Red (Nominee 2) Limited 0 Eng\;:{iarﬁsand 100% Ordinary shares
Tesco Red Unit Trust England and .
1 100% Units
Wales
Tesco Seacroft Limited 0 Eng,\)l:{lari(isand 100% Ordinary shates
Weymouth Avenue (Dorchester) England and or. .
Limited (1) Wales 100% Ordinary shares
16. Investments (continued)

Associated undertakings Registered | Place of Proportion of | Share class

office incorporation voting rights

address and shares’

held

Broadfields Management Limited (3) England and Wales 35.33% Ordinary shares
Shire Park Limited (4 England and Wales 48.57% Ordinary shares

(i) Directly held by Spen Hill Residential No 1 Limited
(i1) Tesco PLC controls the entity but legal control is with TSL employees who are Trust beneficiaries

Registered office addresses:

1) Tesco House, Shire Park, Kestrel Way, Welwyn Garden City, AL7 1GA, United Kingdom
2) Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF, United Kingdom

3) 2Paris Parklands, Railton Road, Guildford, Surrey, GU2 9JX

4) Riverside House, 3 Place Farm, Wheathampstead, St. Albans, England, AL4 8SB

17. Stocks
27 February 2021 29 February 2020
£m  fm
Goods held for resale 1,275 1,284
Development properties 3 3
Total stocks 1,278 1,287

Stock losses and provisions recognised as an expense for the year were £122m (2020: £111m).

18. Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

27 February 2021 29 February 2020

£m £m

Amounts owed by Group undertakings 1,409 4,566
Amounts owed by joint ventures 27 35
Other debtors 102 150
Prepayments 143 112
Accrued income 113 107
Finance lease receivable 1 2
Total amounts falling due within one year 1,795 4,972

Included within amounts owed by Group undertakings are amounts that are unsecured, have no fixed date of

repayment and are repayable on demand.

Amounts owed by Group undertakings are either interest-bearing balances of £1,253m (2020: £4,322m) or non-
interest bearing balances of £156m (2020: £244m), depending on the type and duration of the debtor relationship
with an interest rate between 0.5% to 1.1% (2020: 1.3% to 8.2%).
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19. Debtors: amounts falling due after more than one year
27 February 2021 29 February 2020

£m £m
Amounts owed by Group undertakings S50 359
Finance lease receivable 10 10
Total amounts falling due after more than one year 560 369

Amounts owed by Group undertakings are interest-bearing, with an interest rate of 0.93% (2020: range of 1.3%
to 8.2%).

20. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

27 February 2021 29 February 2020

£m £m
Trade creditors 3,924 3,736
Overdrafts 213 271
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 1,155 1,491
Amounts owed to joint ventures 6 7
Other taxation and social security 303 358
Accruals and deferred income 870 695
Other creditors 609 544
External interest payable - 6
“A” Preference shares of £1 each — 259,600,000 (2020: 259 259
259,000,000)
Total amounts falling due within one year 7,339 7.367

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are either interest-bearing balances of £nil (2020: £822m) or non-interest
bearing balances of £1,155m (2020: £669m) depending on the type and duration of creditor relationship, with an
interest rate of nil (2020: 1.1% to 1.5%).

Preference shares

The Preference shares confer on the holder the right to receive a fixed dividend. Dividends accrue on the “A”
Preference shares at a fixed rate of 6.08 percent per annum of the nominal value of each “A” Preference share. As
regards capital, on winding up the Company, the Preference shares shall be redeemed in priority to ordinary shares,
together with any arrears of dividend.

The “A” Preference shares are redeemnble at par value at any date after 22 May 2007 by service of a notice of
redemption by the Company or the “A” Preference shareholders. The right to receive dividends on the “A”
Preference shares in the capital of the Company was waived in respect of current and prior periods.
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21. Creditors: amounts falling due after more _than one year

27 Febritary 2021 29 February 2020

£m £m
Amounts owed to Group undertakings - 594
Total amounts falling due after more than one year - 594

For prior period, amounts owed to Group undertakings were interest-bearing, with an interest rate of 1.5%.
22. Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are used to hedge exposure to market risks and those that are held as hedging instruments are formally
designated as hedges as defined in IFRS 9. The expected maturity of the financial assets and liabilities is not
considered to be materially different to their current and non-current classification.

Asset Liability Asset Liability

27February 27 February 29 February 29 February

2021 2021 2020 2020

£m £m £m £m

Current 2 (59 11 (23)
Non-current 1 - - -
3 69 11 23)

The fair value and notional amounts of derivatives analysed by hedge type are as follows:

27 February 2021 29 February 2020
£m ‘ £m
Asset Liability ~ Asset ~ Liability

Fair Notional Fair Notional Fair Notional Fair  Notional

value value value value  value value value value
Cash flow hedges
Forward contracts 1 170 (55) 1,153 6 267 (21) 769
Derivatives notin a
formal hedging
arrangement
Forward contracts 2 9 - 5 5 274 @) 34

3 179 (55) 1,158 11 541 (23) 803

Financial risk factors

The fair values of derivative financial instruments are measured using a discounted cash flow technique based on
market data applied consistently for similar types of instruments.

Derivatives are used to hedge exposure to market risks. Derivatives may qualify as hiedges for accounting purposes
and the Company’s hedging policies are further described below.

47|Page



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 26D4E12B-5736-4D5C-9B58-9A98E4E4885C

TESCO STORES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

22. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Cash flow hedges

The Company uses forward contracts to mainly hedge the foreign currency cost of future purchases of goods for
resale, where those purchases are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the purchasing
company. Where these contracts qualify for hedge accounting, fair value gains and losses are deferred in equity.
These hédging instrumerits are primarily used to hedge purchases in Euros and US Dollars. The cash flow hedges
will mature and will affect the Profit and Loss Account within one year of the balance sheet date.

Financialinstruments not qualifying for hedge accounting

. The Company’s policy does not permit use of derivatives for trading purposes. However, some derivatives do not
qualify for hedge accounting, or are specifically not designated as a hedge where gains and losses on the hedging
instrument and the hedged item naturally offset in the Profit and Loss Account.

Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the Profit arid Loss Account within interest income or expenses. Refer to Note 9.

23. Provisions for Liabilities

Propeérty Restructuring Other Total
provision provisions provisions £m
£m £m £m

At 29 February 2020 55 50 - 105

Amount provided in the period 33 5 7 45

Amount utilised in the period 1) (40) - (41)

Amount released in the period (18) (15) - (33)

Unwinding of discount 1 - - 1

At 27 February 2021 70 - 7 77
Analysed as:

Current 24 - 7 31

Non-current 46 - - 46

70 - 7 77

Property provisions

Property provisions comprise onerous property provisions, including dilapidations and other onerous contracts
related to property. The provisions are based on the cost of fulfilling or exiting the contract.

Restructuring provisions

The net release of £10m (£5m charge and £15m release) (2020: net charge of £92m) relates to ongoing changes
to storé colleague strictures and working practices. '
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24. Share-based payments

The Profit and Loss Account charge for the period recognised in respect of share- based payment is £51m (2020:
£98m) which is made up of share option schemes and share bonus payments. Of this amount, £46m (2020: £91 m)
will be settled in equity and £5m (2020: £7m) in cash representing National Insurance contributions. For Tesco
Group share based payment schemes, Tesco PLC issues shares direct to eligible colleagues and receives payment
from the relevant employing entity. In 2020/21 Tesco PLC invoiced Tesco Stores Limited £667m for shares issues
to its employees for which payment had not previously been made.

Share option schemes

The Company had six share option schemes in operation during the financial period, all of which are equity settled
schemes:

a) The Savings-related Share Option Scheme (1981) permits the grant to colleagues of options in respect of
ordinary shares linked to a building society/bank save-as-you-earn contract for a term of three or five years with
contributions from colleagues of an amount between £5 and £500 per four- weekly period. Options are capable of
being exercised at the end of the three or five-year period at a subscription price of not less than 80% of the
average of the middle-market quotations of an ordinary share over the three dealing days immediately preceding
the offer date.

b) The Executive Incentive Plan (2004) permitted the grant of options in respect of ordinary shares to selected
senior executives. Options are normally exercisable between three and ten years from the date of grant for nil
consideration. No further options will be granted under this scheme.

c) The Executive Incentive Plan (2014) permits the grant of options in respect of ordinary shares to selected senior
executives as a proportion of annual bonus following the completion of a required service period and is dependent
on the achievement of corporate performance and individual targets. Options are normmlly exercisable between
three and ten years from the date of grant for nil consideration.

d) The Performance Share Plan (2011) permits the grant of options in respect of ordinary shares to selected
executives. Options are normally exercisable between the vesting date(s) set at grant and ten years from the date
of grant for nil consideration. The vesting of options will normally be conditional upon the achievement of
specified performance targets over a three-year period and/or continuous employment.

€) The Group Bonus Plan permits the grant of options in respect of ordinary shares to selected senior executives
as a proportion of annual bonus following the completion of a required service period and is dependent on the
achievement of corporate performance and individual targets. Options are normally exercisable between three and
ten years from the date of grant for nil consideration.

f) The Long-Term Incentive Plan (2015) permits the grant of options in respect of ordinary shares to selected
executives. Options are normally exeicisable between the vesting date(s) set at grant and ten years from the date
of grant for nil consideration. The vesting of options will normally be conditional upon the achievement of
specified performance targets over a three-year period and/or continuous employment.

The following tables reconcile the number of share options outstanding and the weighted average exercise price
(“WAEP”).
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24, Share-based payments (continued)
Share option schemes (continued)

For the 52 weeks ended 27 February 2021

Savings related share Approved share Unapproved share Nil cost share option’
option scheme* option scheme option scheme scheme

Options WAEP. Options WAEP | Options WAEP | Options WAEP
Outstanding at 29
February 2020 195,260,660 175.06 - - - - | 7,284,703 -
Granted 52,787,423 198.00 - - - - 197,999 -
Forfeited (16,232,259) 197.73 - - - + { (1,550,633) -
Exercised (81,430,330) 151.29 - - - - | (1,855,490) =
Outstanding at
27 February
2021 150,385,494 193.86 - - - - | 4,076,579 -
Exercise price 150.00 to
range (pence) 219.00
Weighted
average
remaining
contractual life
(years) 2.86 5.28
Exercisable as at
27 February
2021 4,258,308 151.11 4,076,579 5.28
Exercise price 150.00 to
range (pence) 219.00
Weighted
average
remaining
contractual life
(years) 0.42 5.28

(a) The special dividend and associated share consolidation had a neutral impact to the number of options.

(b) Contractual life represents the period from award to the scheme end date. Certain schemes may be exercised
later than vesting date at the discretion of the individual.

For the 53 weeks ended 29 February 2020:

Savings related share option Approved share Unapproved share | Nil cost share option

scheme option scheme option scheme scheme

Options WAEP Options | WAEP Options WAEP | Options | WAEP
Outstanding at 23 _ ] _
February 2019 194,938,485 168.04 217,918 | 338.40 4,410,398 | 338.40| 12,633,396 -
Granted 39,938,549 219.00 - - - -1 (295,554) -
Forfeited (21,117,764) 200.62| (217,918)| 338.40| (4.410,398)| .338.40( (3,097,373) -
Exercised (18,498,610) 167.18 - - - -| (1,955,766) -
Outstanding at 29 o o
February 2020 195,260,660 175.06 - - -| 7,284,703 -
Exercise price 150.00 to
range (pence) 322.00
Weighted average
remaining
contractual life
(years) 2.09 6.39
Exercisable as at 29
February 2020 2,691,536 189.92 - - - -1 9,359,089 -
Baueri 51000
Weighted average
remaining
contractual life
(years) 0.41 5.60
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24, Share-based payments (continued)

Share option schemes (continued)

Share options were exercised on a regular basis throughout the financial period. The average share price during,
the financial period ended 27 Febiuary 2021 was 227.07p (2020: 237.69p).

The fair value of savings related share options schemes are estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model The following table gives the assumptions applied to the options granted in the respective
periods shown. No assumption has been made to incorporate the effects of expected early exercise.

27 February 2021 29 February 2020

SAYE | Nil cost SAYE | Nilcost
Expected dividend yield (%) 4.9%-5.1% - 3.7%-4.3% -
Expected volatility (%) 23.00%-25.6% | 22.6%-28.1% -
Risk free interest rate (%) 0.15%-0.26% - 0.81%-0.84% -
Expected life of option (years) 3or5S - 3orS5 -
Weighted average fair value of options granted 27.13 - 38.56 i
(pence)
Probability of forfeiture (%) 6%-10% - 7%-10% s
Share price (pence) 219.60 - 243.00 -
Weighted average exercise price (pence) 198.00 - 219.00 -

Volatility is a measure of the amount by which a price is expected to fluctuate during a period. The measure of
volatility used in the Tesco PLC option pricing models is the annualised standard deviation of the continuously
compounded rates of return on the share over a period of time. In estimating the future volatility of the Tesco
PLC's share price, the Tesco PLC Board considers the historical volatility of the share price over the most recent
period that is generally commensurate with the expected term of the option, taking into account the remaining
contractual life of the option.

Share bonus schemes

Selected executives participate in the Group Bonus Plan, a performance-related bonus scheme. The amount paid
to colleagues is based on a percentage of salary and is paid partly in cash and partly in shares. Bonuses are awarded
to selected executives who have completed a required service period and depend on the achievement of corporate
and individual performance targets.

Selected executives participate in the Performance Share Plan (2011) and the Long-Term Incentive Plan (2015).
Awards made under these plans will normally vest on the vesting date(s) set on the date of the award for nil
consideration. Vesting will normally be conditional on the achievement of specified performance targets over a
three-year performance period and/or continuous employment.

The Executive Directors participate in short-term and long-term bonus schemes designed to align their interests
with those of shareholders.

The fair value of shares awarded under these schemes is their market value on the date of award. Expected
dividends are not incorporated into the fair value.

The number and weighted average fair value (WAFV) of share bonuses awarded during the financial period were:

27 February 2021 29 February 2020
Number of shares | WAFYV (pence) | Number of shares WAFV (pence)
Group Bonus Plan 10,044,953 246.7 7,271,869 237.80
Performance Share Plan 15,420,389 221.7 16,532,688 254.79
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25. Pensions and other post-employment benefits
Pensions

The Company operates a variety of post-employment benefit arrangements, covering both funded and unfunded
defined benefit schemes and defined contribution schemes.

Defined contribution schemes
Defined contribution schemes are open to all Tesco employees in the UK.

Under the Company's defined contribution pension schemes, employees of the Company pay contributions to an
independently administered fund, into which the Company also pays contributions based upon a fixed percentage
of the employee's contributions. The Company has no further payment obligations once its contributions have
been paid. Contributions paid for defined contribution schemes of £281m(2020: £301m) have been recognised in
the Company’s Profit and Loss Account. This includes £124m (2020: £115m) of salaries paid as pension
contributions.

Defined benefit schemes

The Company has a defined benefit pension deficit of £916m (2020: £2,730m). The moveinent in the net deficit
is mainly driven by a one-off contribution of £2.5bn following the Group’s sale of its operation in Asia.

The principal plan within the Company is the Tesco PLC Pension Scheme (the Scheme), the assets of which are
held as a segregated fund and administered by the Trustee. The Scheme is established under trust law and has a
corporate trustee that is required to run the Scheme in accordance with the Scheme’s Trust Deed and Rules and
to comply with all relevant legislation. Responsibility for governance of the Scheme lies with the Trustee. The
Trustee is a company whose directors comprise:

1) representatives of the Company; and
2) representatives of the Scheme participants, in accordance with its articles of association and UK pension law.

Guaranteed Minimum Pension

During the year, a further High Court judgement was handed down regarding the Lloyds Banking Company’s
defined benefit pension schemes, which affects many pension schemes in the UK, including the Company’s UK
schemes. This ruling requires pension schemes to also consider the impact of guaranteed minimum pensions
(GMPs) equalisation on individual transfer payments made since May 1990. In consultation with independent
actuaries, the Company recognised the financial effect of this as a one-off £2m exceptional past service cost in
the current year.

Scheme funding

The Company considers two measures of the pension deficit. The accounting position is shown on the Company
balance sheet. The funding position, calculated at the triennial actuarial assessment, is used to agree contributions
made to the schemes. The two measures will vary because they are for different purposes, and are calculated at
different dates and in different ways. The key calculation difference is that the funding position considers the
expected returns of scheme assets when calculating the liability, whereas the accounting position calculated under
IAS 19 discounts liabilities based on corporate bond yields.

The most recent completed triennial actuarial assessment of the Scheme was performed at 31 December 2019
using the projected unit credit wethod. After the £2.5bn contribution in relation to the Group's sale of the its
operations in Thailand and Malaysia, the funding position was a surplus of £570m The market value of the
Scheme’s assets was £18,492m and these assets represented 103% of the benefits that had accrued to members,
after allowing for expected increases in pensions in payment.
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25. Pensions and other post-employment benefits (continued)
Scheme funding (continued)

Subsequent to the latest triennial actuarial assessment, no further deficit contributions are expected to be required.
The Company will continue to pay £25m per annum to meet expenses of the Scheme including the Pension
Protection Fund levy. Additionally, as part of the triennial review the market value of assets held as security in
favour of the Scheme increase to at least £775m (2020: £575m).

Under IFRIC 14 "The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimoum Funding Requirements and their Interaction”,
the Company is not required to recognise any additional liabilities in relation to funding plans or limit the
recognition of any surpluses, as any future economic benefits will be available to the Company by way of future
refunds or reductions to future contributions.

Maturity profile of obligations

The estimated duration of the Scheme obligations is an indicator of the wei ghted average term of benefit payments
after discounting, For the Scheme this is 23 years. Around 40% of the undiscounted benefits are expected to be
paid beyond 30 years’ time, with the last payments expected to be over 80 years from now.

The estimated undiscounted benefit payments expected to be paid out over the life of the Scheme is shown below:

5.0

3.0

II ll

1.0

BN

1-5 6-10 11-15 16-20 21-25 26-30 31-35 36-40 41-45 46-50 51-55 56-60 61-65 66-70 70+
Years

£'Bn

B Deferred Members @ Current Pensioners

The liabilities held by the Scheme are broken down as follows:

%
Deferred Members 78
Current Pensioners 22
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25. Pensions and other post-employment benefits (continued)

Risks

The Company bears a number of risks in relation to the Scheme, which are described below:

Risk

Description of risk

Mitigation

Investment

The Scheme’s accounting liabilities are
calculated using a discount rate set with
reference to corporate bond yields. If the
return on the Scheme’s assets underperform
this rate; the accounting deficit will increase.

If the Scheme's assets underperform the
expected return for the funding valuation,
this may require additional contributions to
be made by the Company.

The Trustee and the Company regularly monitor
the funding position and operate a diversified
investment strategy.

The Trustee and Company take a balanced
approach to investment risk and have a long-
term plan to significantly reduce investment risk
within the Scheme.

Inflation

The Scheme’s benefit obligations are linked
to inflation. A higher rate of expected long-
term inflation will therefoie lead to higher
liabilities, both for the IAS19 and funding
liability.

If the Scheme's funding liability increases,
this may require additional contributions to
be made by the Company.

As part of the investment strategy, the Trustee
ains to mitigate this risk through investment in
a liability-driven investment (LDI) portfolio.

The portfolio invests in assets which increase in
value as inflation expectations increase. This
mitigates the impact of any adverse movement
in long-term inflation expectations.

The Scheme's holdings are designed to hedge
against inflation risk up to the value of the
funded liabilities.

Additionally, changes to future benefits were
introduced in June 2012 to reduce the Scheme’s
exposure to inflation risk by changing the basis
for calculating the rate of increase in pensions to
CPI (previously RPT).

Interest
rate

A decrease in corporate bond yields will
increase the accounting deficit under IAS 19.
Similarly, a decrease in gjlt yields will have
an adverse impact on the funding position of
the Scheme. This may lead to additional
contributions being made by the Company.

As part of the investment strategy, the Trustee
ains to mitigate this risk through investment in
a liability-driven investmeént (LDI) portfolio.

The portfolio invests in assets which increase in
value as interest rates decrease. The Scheme's
holdings are designed to hedge against interest
rate risk up to the value of the funded liabilities.

Because the aim of the portfolio is to mitigate
risk for the funding position, ineffectiveness in
hedging for the accounting deficit under IAS19
can arise where corporate bond and gilt yields
diverge. This is partially offset by Scheme
holdings in corporate bonds. '

Life
expectancy

The Scheme’s obligations are to provide
benefits for the life of the member and so
increase in life expectancy will lead to higher
liabilities.

To reduce this risk, changes to future benefits
were introduced in June 2012 to increase the age
at which members can take their full pension by
two years.

The Trustees and Company regularly ‘monitor
the impact of changes in longevity on Scheme
obligations.
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25. Pensions and other post-employment benefits (continued)

Risks (continued)

The Operations and Audit Pensions Committee was established to further strengthen the Company's Trustee
Governance and provide greater oversight and stronger internal control over the Company's risks. The Company
Pensions Committee was also set up to provide an additional layer of governance and risk management. Further

mitigation of the risks is provided by external advisors and the Trustee who consider the funding position, fund
performance and impacts of any regulatory changes.

Scheme principal assumptions
Financial assumptions

The mjor assumptions, on a weighted average basis, used by the actuaries to value the defined benefit obligation
of the Scheme were as follows: '

2021 2020

% %

Discount rate 2.0 1.9

Price inflation 2.9 2.8

Rate of increases in deferred pensions® 25 2.0
Rate of increase in pensions in payment*

Benefits accrued before 1 June 2012 2.8 2.7

Benefits accrued after 1 June 2012 2.5 21

*In excess of any Guaranteed Minimum Pension (‘GMP’) element.
Discount rate

The discount rate for the Scheme is determined by reference to market yields of high-quality corporate bonds of
suitable curmrency and term to the Scheme cash flows and extrapolated based on the trend observable in corporate
bond yields to produce a single equivalent discount rate.

Inflation

The inflation assumption is used to determine increases in pensions linked to RPI and CPI inflation within sections
of the Scheme, subject to relevant maximum and minimum increases.

RPI inflation is derived by reference to the difference between fixed-interest and index-linked long-term
government bonds. To account for the premium that investors are willing to pay to mitigate the risk that inflation
is higher than expected, the inflation assumption incorporates an inflation risk premium CPI inflation is set by
reference to RPL

The government announced RPI reforms in 2019 and subsequently responded to a consultation in November 2020,
with changes to align RPI with CPIH expected from 2030 onwards. The Group uses a bifurcated approach to pre-
and post-2030 assumptions, reflecting the impact of the RPI reforms from 2030 onwards. In consultation with
external actuaries, the inflation risk premium has been set at 0.42% (2020: 0.25%), representing the weighted
average of 0.3% p.a. pre-2030 and 0.5% p.a. post-2030. The CPI differential has been set as 0.43% lower than
RPI (2020: 0.80%), representing the weighted average of 1.0% p.a. pre-2030 and 0.1% p.a. post-2030.

Mortality assumptions

The Company, in consultation with an independent actuary, conducted a mortality analysis under the Scheme as
part of the triennial actuarial valuation process. Subsequent to this analysis, the Company adopted the best estimate
assumptions for the calculation of the IAS 19 pension liability for the main UK scheme.

The mortality assumptions used are based on tables that have been projected to 2017 with CMI 2018
improvements. In addition, the allowance for future mortality improvements from 2017 have been updated to be
in line with CMI 2019, with a long-term improvement rate of 1.25% per annum

The base tables used in calculating the mortality assumptions are different for various categories of members, as
shown below:
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25. Pensions and other post-employment benefits (continued)

Scheme principal assumptions (continued)

Sensitivity analysis of significant actuarial assumptions

Pensioner Non-Pensioner
Male Staff 90% of SAPS 83 Normal Heavy 97% of SAPS S3 Normal Heavy
Senior Manager 95% of SAPS S3 Normal Light 104% of SAPS S3 Normal Light

Female Staff 110% of SAPS S3 Normal Heavy | 114% of SAPS S3 Normal Heav
Senior Manager 95% of SAPS S3 All Middle 100% of SAPS S3 All Middle

The following table illustrates the expectation of life of an average member retiring at age 65 at the balance sheet
date and a member teaching age 65 at the balance sheet date +25 years. A comparison between the two retiree
dates illustrates the expected improvements in mortality over the next 25 years.

2021 2020
(Years) (Years)
Retiring at feporting date af age 65: Male 20.7 22.0
Female 22.2 23.8
Retiring at reporting date +25 years at age 65: Male 22.0 23.4
Femmle 23.9 25.8
The sensitivity of significant assumptions upon the Scheme defined benefit obligations are detailed below:
Financial assumptions - 2021 2021 2020 2020
Increase/(Decrease) in UK
Defined Benefit Obligation
Discount rate | Inflation rate | Discount rate | Inflation rate
£m £m £m £m
Impact of 0.1% increase of the (460) 400 (460) 383
assumption
Impact of 0.1% decrease of the 480 (380) 479 (383)
assumption
Impact of 1.0% increase of the (4,038) 4,318 (4,002) 4,289
assumption
Impact of 1.0% decrease of the 5,577 (3,418) 5,572 (3.313)
assumption
Mortality assumptions - Increase/(Decrease) in UK Defined 27 February 29 February
Benefit Obligation 2021 2020
£m £m
Impact of 1year increase in longevity 900 881
Impact of 1 year decrease in longevity (920) (881)

Sensitivities are calculated by changing the relevant assumption whilst holding all other assumptions constant.
The sensitivities reflect the range of recent assumption movements and illustrate that the financial assumption
sensitivities do not move in a linear fashion. Movements in the defined benefit obligation from discount rate and
inflation rate changes may be partially offset by movements in assets.

Post-employment benefits other than pensions

The Company operates a scheme offering post-retirement healthcare benefits. The cost of providing these benefits
has been accounted for on a similar basis to that used for defined benefit pension schemes.

The liability as at 27 February 2021 of £7m (2020: £8m) was determined in accordance with the advice of
independent actuaries. During the period, £nil (2020: £nil) has been charged to the Company Profit and Loss
Accountand £nil (2020: £nil) of benefits were paid.
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25. Pensions and other post-employment benefits (continued)
Plan assets

The Company’s pension schemes hold assets that both provide returns and mitigate Tisk, including the volatility
of future pension payments. The table below shows a breakdown of the combined investments held by the

Company’s Scheme:
2021 2020
Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total
£m £fm. £m’ % £m £m £m %
Equities.
UK 69 - 69 0% 244 - 244 2%
Europe 846 - 846 4% 711 - 711 4%
Rest of the world 4356 - 4,356 23% 4,231. - 4,231 26%
5271 - 5,271 27% 5,186 - 5,186 32%
Bonds
Government. 1,263 - 1,263 7% 640 - 640. 4%
Corporates — 3,012 - 3,012, 16% 1,015 - 1,015 6%
Investment grade ’
Corporates - Non- 193 - 193 1% - - - 0%
investment grade
4,468 - 4,468 24% 1,655 - 1,655 10%
Property
UK 76 990 1,066 6% 42 985 1,027 6%
Rest of the world - 440 440 2% 0 475 475 3%
76 1,430 1,506 8% 42 1,460 1,502 9%
Alternative assets
Hedge Funds - 357 357 2% - 304 304 2%
Private Equity - 1,020 1,020 5% - 881 881 5%
Other 90 1,288 1,378 7% 115 1,043 1,158 7%
90 2,665 2,755 14% 115 2,228 2,343 14%
Liability Driven 3,093 (493) 2,600 14% 4,393 444 4,837 29%
Investment (LDI)
portfolios
Cash 2,527 - 2,527 13% 905 - 905 6%
Total market 15,525 3,602 19,127 100% 12,296 4,132 16,428 100%

value of assets

Quoted assets are those with a quoted price in an active market. Unquoted assets are valued in accordance with
IFRS13, using the most appropriate level within the fair value hierarchy based on the specifics of the asset class,
and in line with industry standard guidelines, including the RICS methodology for property and the IPEV
guidelines for Private Equity.

The LDI category consists of assets, including gilts and index linked gilts, of the value of £8,137m (2020:
£7,909m) and associated repurchase agreements and swaps of £(5,537)m (2020: £(3,072)m). Other derivatives
are included in the asset category to which they relate reflecting the underlying nature and exposure of the
derivative.

The plan assets include £222m (2020: £209m) relating to property used by the Company. Company property with
net carrying value of £826m (2020: £478m) and a value to the Scheme of at least £775m (2020: £575m) is held
as security in favour of the Scheme.
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

25. Pensions and other post-employment benefits (continued)

Movements in the Company pension deficit during the financial period:

Fair value of plan Defined benefit Net definied benefit
assets obligation surplus/(deficit)
27 29 27 29 27 29
February February February February February February
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Opening balance 16,428 14099  (19,158)  (16,709) (2,730)  (2,610)
Current service cost g - 25) (28) 25) (28)
Past service cost - - ?) - ) -
Finance income/(cost). 326 386 (368) (453) (42) (67)
Included in Profit and Loss 326 386 (395) (481) ©69) (95)
Account
Remeasurement gain/(loss)
- Financial assumption - - (1,220  (2,651) (1,2200  (2,651)
gain/(loss)
- Demographic assumption - - 18 178 18 178
gain/(loss)
- Experience gain/(loss) - - 363 54 363 54
- Return on plan assets (94) 2,104 - - (94) 2,104
excluding finance income
Included in Statement of (94) 2,104 (839) (2,419) (933) (315)
Changes in Equity
Employer contributions 25 28 - - 25 28
Additional contributions 2,820 257 - - 2,820 257
Benefits paj(f (378) (446) 393 451 15 5
Other. 2,467 (161) 393 451 2,860 290
Closing balance 19,127 16428  (19,999)  (19,158) (872)  (2,730)
Deferred tax asset 165 464
Deficit in schemes at the end (707)  (2,266)
of the period, net of deferred
tax
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

26. Related party transactions

During the period the Company entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with other related
parties. The Company has taker advaritage of the exemption under paragraph 8(k) of FRS 101 not to disclose
transactions with fellow wholly owned subsidiaries within the Group. Transactions entered into with other related
parties in the Group which are not wholly owned subsidiaries, are as follows:

52 weeks ended 27 53 weeks ended 29

February 2021 February 2020

£m £m

Sales to related parties 459 465
Purchases from related parties 82 94
Amounts owed by joint ventures 29 35
Amounts owed to joint ventures 6 7
Lease liability owed to joint ventures 3,920 4,415

Transactions between the Company and the Company’s pension plans are disclosed in Note 25.

27. Ultimate group undertaking

The Company's immediate parent undertaking is Tesco Holdings Limited. The Company’s ultimate parent’
undertaking and controlling party is Tesco PLC which is registered in England and Wales, and which is the parent
undertaking of the smallest and largest group to consolidate these financial statements.

Copies of the Tesco PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021 are available from the Company Secretary
at its registered office: Tesco PLC, Tesco House, Shire Park, Kestrel Way, Welwyn Garden City, AL7 1GA,
United Kingdom

28. Called up share capital
27 February 2021 29 February 2020

£m £m
Allotted, called up and fully paid
1,320,006,600 ordinary shares of £1 each (2020: 1,320,006,000) 1,320 1,320
5,000,000 “B” Irredeemable preference shares of £1 each (2020: 5 5
5,000,000)
1,325 1,325

The Ordinary Shares have attached to them full voting rights at General Meetings of the Company. Each Ordinary
Share shall have 150,000 votes for each Ordinary Share registered. During the current period, the Company
acquired companies in two of the Group’s joint venture property structures, The Tesco Red Limited Partnership
and The Tesco Aqua Limited Partnership, from other Group companies. The considetation was séttled in shares
of the Company, with £600 of share capital issued by the Company and the balance recorded within merger
resetve.

The Preference shares confer on the holder the right to receive a fixed dividend. Dividends for the “B” Preference
shares are calculated based on the pre-determined formula of the Reference Gilt Rate plus 1.279% multiplied by
the RPI ratio applicable to the month in which the dividend payment falls.

As regards capital, on winding up the Company, the Preference shares shall be redeemed in priority to ordinary
shares, together with any arrears of dividend.
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TESCO STORES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED
27 FEBRUARY 2021 (continued)

28. Called up share capital (continued)
The “B” Preference shares are irredeemable.

The right to receive dividends on the “B”™ Preference Shares in the capital of the Company was waived in respect
of in respect of current and prior periods.

29. Capital commitments

At 27 February 2021 there were commitments for capital expenditure contracted for but not provided of
approximately £116m (2020: £72m), principally related to store development.

30. Contingent liabilities

A number of contingent liabilities can arise in the normal course of business. The Company recognises
provisions for liabilities when it is more likely than not that a settlement will be required and the value of such a
payment can be reliably estimated.

The Company has provided a fixed charge over a portfolio of several properties with a net carrying value of up to
£826m (2020: £478m) in favour of the Tesco PLC Pension Scheme in the event of the Company defaulting on its
obligations to the scheme.

The Company is a guarantor to £2.5bn (2020: £3bn) of committed facilities consisting of a revolving credit facility
and bilateral lines. The Company is a guarantor to these facilities alongside Tesco PLC. As at 27 February 2021,
these facilities remain undrawn. The undrawn committed facilities include £nil (2020: £0.4bn) of bilateral
facilities and a £2.5bn (2020: £2.6bn) syndicated revolving credit facility. All facilities incur commitment fees at
market rates and would provide funding at floating rates. There were no withdrawals from the facilities during the
year.

The Company has guaranteed the rental payments of certain Group undertakings relating to a portfolio of retail
stores, distribution centres and mixed-use retail developments.

As previously reported, Tesco Stores Limited has received claims from current and former Tesco store colleagues
alleging that their work is of equal value to that of colleagues working in Tesco’s distribution centres and that
differences in terms and conditions relating to pay are not objectively justifiable. The claimants are seeking the
differential between the pay terms looking back, and equivalence of pay terms moving forward. There are three
separate stages of these claims, and to be successful, the claimants have to win at each stage. These claims are in
their initial phases and none of these stages has been determined, and each may be subject to appeal. A final
determination of these claims is not expected for several years. At present, the likely number of claims that may
be received and the merit, likely outcome and potential impact on the Company of any such litigation is subject
to a number of significant uncertainties and therefore, the Company cannot make any assessment of the likely
outcome or quantum of any such litigation as at the date of this disclosure. There are substantial factual and legal
defences to these claims and the Company intends to vigorously defend them.

31. Events after the reporting period

On 20 April 2021, the Company was issued a fine of £8m in relation to the sale of out-of-date food in 2016/17.
This represents an adjusting post-balance sheet event which has been accounted for in the financial statements.

Following the year end, the Company completed the Red and Aqua restructuring transaction which resulted in
Tesco Property Holdings Limited and Tesco Property Holdings Limited No 2 investment in Tesco Stores Limited
transferring to Tesco Holdings Limited. This is anon-adjustingevent and the accounting impact of this transaction
will be reflected in the next financial year results.

On 3 June 2021, The European Court of Justice rules than an EU law could be relied on in making equal pay
claims against Tesco. As disclosed in Note 30 Contingent liabilities, the ruling from European Court does not
change the Company’s position at the year-end as it is not determinative of the case as a whole. This is a non-
adjusting event.

In June 2021, the Company announced its intention to wind down its Global Export business. This decision does
not materially impact the overall strategy of the business as set out in the Directors’ report on page 2. Thisisa
non-adjusting event.
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